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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to basic care facility end of life services 
 

Minutes:                                                 1,2,3,4,5,6 

 
Meeting opened.  
 
Chairman Weisz introduced bill.  
 
Representative Tveit: Is this a facility by facility situation? 
 
Chairman Weisz: I believe the health department changed their rules, allowing certain 
patients to stay in the facility and receive hospice care. This bill would expand those rules to 
allow the families to be involved in the hospice care as well.  
 
Representative Rohr: Does this change reimbursement? 
 
Chairman Weisz: I was going to ask the department, and I don’t know the answer to that 
question. 
 
Representative Rohr: Does it fit the criteria for hospice as well? 
 
Chairman Weisz: Currently hospice has to come in and do it.  This bill will allow family or 
private hospice to be a part of that care. It does expand that then.  
 
Representative Skroch: Will this dove tail with this legislation we heard that allows for a 
caregiver to be assigned and assist someone in that situation? 
 
Chairman Weisz: Not really.  This is very specific to end of life situation in need of hospice. 
This allows more flexibility allowing the facility to handle this without having to send the 
residents somewhere else. 
 
Shelly Peterson, President of ND Long Term Care Association: (see attachment 1, 
handed out attachment 2) 
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Chairman Weisz: Is it your intent that the facility will help train the volunteers to fulfill their 
commitment to the patient in case of emergency? 
 
Ms. Peterson: Yes, they would need to be properly trained. 
 
Representative Rohr: Some patients require pain management pumps; could your staff 
provide that care? 
 
Ms. Peterson: Yes, we can contract with home health and hospice to bring in those extra 
services. The question now is that whether or not they are meeting criteria.   
 
Representative Rohr: So you still need to develop criteria? 
 
Ms. Peterson: No we already have basic care criteria. It would allow us to provide skilled 
care, if we have the proper family, staff, or agencies that would provide that care.  
 
Representative Rohr: Drive up the cost? 
 
Ms. Peterson: Right now if they go to nursing facility, it would be a shock to the increase for 
the facility. It would be far cheaper to care for them in the basic care facility. 
 
Kari Dick, Executive Director at Touchmark at Harwood Groves: (see attachment 3) 
 
Rochelle Schaffer, Registered Nurse and President of the ND Hospice Organization: 
(See attached 4) 
 
Cheryl Rising, FNP and legislative liaison for ND Nurse Practitioner Association: (see 
attachment 5) 
 
Opposed testimony. 
 
Bruce Pritschet, Director of the Division of Health Facilities within the Department of 
Health: (see attachment 6) 
 
Chairman Weisz: The amendments don’t change your mind? 
 
Mr. Pritschet: No. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Will Medicaid continue to pay even though they should go to Skilled Care? 
 
Leanne Thiel, Department of Human Services: When basic care is exceeded, currently, 
they do have to move on to the level of care necessary. But if hospice, I have to check into 
that. 
 
No further testimony or questions. Meeting closed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Voting on the bill.  
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Hearing opened.  
 
Representative Skroch: Motion made to adopt amendment.  
 
Representative Westlind: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Weisz: Discussion? The amendments do narrow it down, and make sure that it 
is only the residents that are currently in the facility. The original language left it open.  
 
Voice vote: motion carried, amendment adopted.  
 
Representative Skroch: Motion for a do pass as amended.  
 
Representative Dobervich: Seconded.  
 
No discussion on the bill.  
 
Roll call vote: 12 Yes, 0 No, 2 Absent. Motion carries.  
 
Floor assignment: Representative Tveit.  
 
No further questions. Meeting closed.  
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Page 1, line 15, remove "admit" 

Page 1, line 16, remove "and" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "volunteer and" with ", or the individual's designee, volunteers, or'' 

Page 1, line 18, after "facility" insert ", individual, or the individual's designee" 

Page 1, line 18, after "g" insert "person or" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "or utilize volunteer and family" 

Page 1, line 19, remove "support, or both," 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to basic care facility end of life services. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments #1-5 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens the hearing on HB 1126.  
 
(01:50-03:30) Representative Robin Weisz, District 14. Introduces HB 1126 and gives a 
brief overview.  
 
Senator Hogan: If you have any idea how often this happens? 
 
Representative Weisz: I know there were a handful of requests under this current provision, 
with the department and that may have to do with the fact that they weren’t able to bring 
anyone in to provide the services We didn’t get any real testimony that said we were 
expecting 10,20 or 50. Looking at the quality of the last few weeks of that individuals 
 
Senator Anderson: I’m wondering why if someone is in a basic care facility, why hospice 
couldn’t come to the basic care facility and provide those just like they do with the people at 
home. Is there some type of criteria or what?  
 
Representative Weisz: the department can better explain that but, it has to do with them 
exceeding the basic care criteria. Often times you don’t need Red River Hospice to come in. 
It’s up to the long term care facility to make sure things are taking care of everything. They 
still have to make sure the needs are met it just give more flexibility that isn’t allowed now.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We don’t have hospice services everywhere in the state because of the 
delivery system, isn’t that part of it? 
 
Representative Weisz: Yes, that is correct, my understanding is the only place I have been 
in the Fargo area that used the exemption that the department came up with. Certainly from 
a rural perspective this helps a lot.  
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(07:55-18:49) Shelly Peterson, President of the North Dakota Long Term Care 
Association. Testifying in support of HB 1126. Please see Attachment #1 for written 
testimony.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m thinking of what took place when Sanford evacuated in 1997. I have 
a video at home of the lines of ambulances in the dark to evacuate people who were on 
stretchers. I can see that people would be able to find family or perhaps volunteers who might 
help during the daytime, here is the deal we just had a pretty crappy snow storm this 
weekend. If people can’t get there, I’m just a little concerned on how those services will be 
provided. How would we work through all that? 
 
Shelly Peterson: Half the residents are Medicaid and the other half are private pay. We run 
into the situation now when we have a blizzard and staff don’t show up, the staff that are 
there, we ask them to stay. What we try to do at end of life is anticipate and care plan and a 
backup plan is established. We can call contract agencies as a last resort, sometimes they 
can’t even respond because they can’t get staff there. We have had fires, for example in 
Minot Edgewood Vista had a fire, it was a Dementia unit with 22 beds, it was horrible. It was 
4:30am close to Christmas, a fire occurred and the facility was on fire, filled with smoke, and 
the sprinklers went off. You think that sounds horrible, it was the most amazing evacuation 
and care for those residents. They got the residents out within five minutes, EMS, Staff, and 
Staff from the neighboring facility that came over and helped as well as people from the 
neighborhood did an amazing job. All residents were evacuated with little on them except 
their pajamas and maybe some slippers, out in the snow with no injuries in horrible weather 
conditions. They temporarily moved all the residents next door to assisted living and found 
out within days that this wasn’t working and they need more care and support. Ultimately, the 
facility is responsible, if families are not showing up we have to be the ones who say, ok this 
is not working and you need to transfer. The unexpected is going to happen but you plan in 
advance and you talk with families. The fire recently down at the Ashley nursing home and 
hospital, it was at lunch time the facility filled with some smoke, the fire was put out right 
away but they evacuated in 36 minutes and I think it was that the fear of fire wasn’t there but 
36 minutes is a long time for an evacuation. There are standards in place and all the basic 
care rules would still apply so we must meet with those circumstances now and if we happen 
to have someone at end of life, yes we are going to deal with those now and have a backup 
plan.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: Would you be looking at putting a plan put in place the time the residents 
move in? Things like durable power of attorneys for healthcare really should be done when 
it’s sort of a business decision and not a crisis decision.  
 
Shelly Peterson: Yes, generally. Upon admission there is an admission packet and they talk 
about end of life, care and services, and what is the criteria for your mother when we can no 
longer meet her needs. You try to plan in advance of those issues. When you see that end 
of life care and hospice is a good option, you talk to families about that, some are open and 
some are not. Sometimes it takes a number of discussions. Recently, I had to get involved 
in a case of a nursing home resident and the spouse wanting to move her husband back 
home. He has stage four cancer and everything that she described was horrific, and I 
suggested to her about hospice and the reaction was very awful because to her it was like, 
no he’s not going to die how can you say that. During that admissions process you get a 
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stack and you go through all the information and you talk advanced directives, when can we 
not care for them, who should we contact when something happens. We haven’t talked about 
so much, if you don’t have the end of life but we would like to talk to them about end of life 
and having those conversations. Right now, the discussion is if their father or mother meets 
these criteria we must move out and then we keep on having that conversation as you see 
them decline and it is still very hard.  
 
(26:30-31:15) Kari Dick, Executive Director at Touchmark at Harwood Groves in Fargo. 
Testifying in support of HB 1126. Please see Attachment #2 for written testimony.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m a huge supporter of hospice and was on the board for a time and I 
wish everybody had hospice but there are parts of the states that don’t have it, and I’m having 
just a little bit of heartburn about relying on volunteers and family members when there isn’t 
that training that hospice staff members and volunteers have also. Help me work though that 
one would you. 
 
Kari Dick: I think that is part of a larger conversation whether it is appropriate to keep that 
individual and for some facilities it may depend on whether they have a hospice agency to 
rely on or if they have knowledgeable staff to help guide that process. Like I said, even at 
Touchmark there are individuals who don’t fit in there and do need to move on to skilled care 
but we have to partner with the family and the resident and sometimes hospice to determine 
whether it is an appropriate fit or not. I think it would still allow us in many cases to keep 
people but in some cases it might not be the right setting. I have to emphasize to that we 
deal with those types of situation all the time when there is bad weather or when a staff 
member doesn’t show up, and we are used to those types of things and have to adjust 
accordingly. I don’t really see that an any different than the norm for us.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It is one thing for you to keep staff members that are already there for an 
extra shift that are already there for several hours, I get that. You just have so much less 
control over a volunteer or family member.  
 
Kari Dick: If you’re dealing with hospice, part of their process outlines everyone’s roles and 
that is a part of our planning process too. At Touchmark, many of our residents are private 
pay so many could pay for private contractor but that’s not the case for everybody and I think 
you need a backup plan when those situations arise and if it doesn’t seem like that is a 
situation where you are going to be able to count on that care than it might not be an 
appropriate situation to get into.  
 
(33:58-40:16) Tracee Capron, Executive Director for Hospice of the Red River Valley. 
Testifying in support of HB 1126. Testimony is as follows: Hospice of the Red River Valley is 
an independent community owned non-profit hospice agency. We serve over 19 counties in 
North Dakota and over 19,000 square miles. We would like to make sure, we have been 
providing care in the state of North Dakota for over 38 years. We allow the families the gift of 
hospice care. We allow them to be treated with dignity and respect anywhere they call home. 
I’m here to testify today and ask for support of HB 1126 with the proposed amendments that 
the ND Long-Term Care Association put forward. First, let me show you what hospice care 
entails. As hospice providers we are experts at caring for people at the end of their life. The 
benefits that come to the patient include patient center care, and most importantly the 
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patient’s wishes, values, and goals. We provide payment symptom control, emotional and 
spiritual support for the patient and their loved ones, grievance services for anyone in the 
community who has lost someone. Also, we combine our efforts and collaborate with experts 
in the long term care and basic care facilities. We combine our expertise’s to provide the best 
experience for the patient. We (inaudible) to the Medicare benefit to educate everyone in this 
process and we do that now. We have to have a plan and it has to be in writing. (inaudible) 
people in our state call basic care their home. They too should be entitled to receive the 
hospice Medicare benefits. HB 1126 amended would help these residents have access to 
the services needed. Today, many are being faced, and it happens to us all the time in our 
agency, they are up routed from their homes and go miles away to a different facility away 
from their families, friends, and staff that they know and love. You have lived in your home 
all of your life, you’ve raised you children and have to make a decision, and you have decided 
to go into a facility of basic care. You spend the last year becoming accustomed to those 
changes, and now you are being told that you have to move again. You have to change 
everything. Nobody should be forced to move from their home at this time, and with your 
support of these changes we can keep this from happening. We are committed to being part 
of the solution to our family, friends, hospice staff, and volunteers to meet the evacuation 
needs of the patient. Our team of experts work with the patient, family, and facility to come 
up with a plan. We do this every day and always have in any care setting. From the time you 
are admitted a care plan is established and a plan and a backup plan are in place. If it goes 
right, we are called immediately and we work together and we come up with something to do 
to ensure that the safety needs of the patients are met. We do this in all care settings, we 
take care of patients that live alone in their home. Your support of HB 1126 has emotional 
and financial benefits to the patients. When a patient is forced to move out of basic care and 
are moved to a skilled nursing care facility it can triple the cost, more importantly if there isn’t 
a place to take the patient you have to move them suddenly and they need to go to a facility 
and you can’t get them there, guess where they go? They go into the health system, they go 
into the hospital, and the costs of one day in the hospital could be 30 days in a basic care 
facility. What is really interesting is that the day before senate testimony last time we had 
another example of this when an elderly patient living in a basic care facility had a fall, sudden 
quick decline, negative 40 degrees and we had to have the family of the patient move. They 
called me and they were predicting a week but she ended up in the hospital, once she was 
admitted into the hospital she got hospice services. This is trauma for the patient and the 
family. It is a burden on our system and everyone. When it comes to hospice care there aren’t 
any second chances to get it right and we do not need to cause more of a burden to anyone 
at this time. We have the opportunity to live the end of their life with comfort, dignity, and 
respect in the care setting that they want to be in. I’m asking to please support the changes 
to basic care facilities in North Dakota by supporting the changes to HB 1126. I did want to 
comment on a couple of things that about the (inaudible). What is interesting is that we 
actually serve 36,000 square miles. Our staff are all placed strategically in our service region. 
(inaudible) We had two cases where staff did stay, it was continuous care overnight around 
the clock in a facility and in a home. If worst comes to worst and (inaudible) call an emergency 
and we meet them and take care of them that way. It is part of our plan and we do it every 
day. That is the only comment that I have at this time other than, safety is addressed at 
admission and throughout the entire plan of the patient if they change. Thank you for your 
help and we appreciate your consideration of this.  
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Madam Chair Lee: I am not as confident that the various hospice programs do this terribly 
responsibly, I’m not as confident that every family member and volunteer is going to be in the 
same place. Here is a far less critical example, in April of 1997 when we were sitting here 
while sand bags were being thrown in Fargo, I called home one day and my husband said 
“oh, by the way your dad is here” who living in a local assisted living facility. They evacuated 
the building and told everyone to come and get their family members. At the same time my 
husband was finding generator to deliver to Grafton where the rural electric had failed. In 
order to keep the sun pumps running in a farm home which is where my dad would have 
been living and in my sister and brother in-laws house they didn’t want to have the basements 
flood. I ended up calling my sister in Denver saying could you please get here and handle 
dad so that my husband can haul the generators to Grafton so that the houses don’t flood. 
There was nothing wrong with my dad’s physical health at that point. My point is there are 
times when family members can’t. I couldn’t go home. The majority leader was sitting upstairs 
at his desk with water around his home because sometimes we have to be places that we 
would rather not be. I realize that those are extraordinary circumstances but it was an 
extraordinary time, so my concern is he didn’t need hospice services, eventually he did and 
we were grateful for Hospice of the Red River Valley when it was at the end of his life. My 
concern is more about what happens in this situation where family is depended on and 
volunteers are depended on. What does a basic care facility do if there is someone who really 
needs services whose volunteer or family member that are being prevented to get there and 
take care of that person? 
 
Tracee Capron: When you talk about the family not being able to get there, more than likely 
the staff won’t be able to get there and I can tell you as a family member I am going to try 
really hard to get to my family because you probably have a staffing issue as well as a 
volunteer or family issue.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The assisted living facility evacuated the facility for fear of the sewage 
failing. If someone is at the end of life and we are depending on people who are torn between 
an obligation one place or another and its family or volunteers, it is not the same with people 
in hospice who recognize a different level of responsibility. Help me through that one. I know 
you’re not responsible for every family member and volunteer but I’m trying to anticipate the 
things we might face and how to address it.  
 
Tracee Capron: I’m not the basic care expert, I’m the hospice expert. What I would say is, 
we provide and part of the education process that is required under Medicare is we are 
required to train the facility, family, volunteer, and provide that training to the facilities. We 
have a group of expert education people that have to, and that is part of their job in the 
community doing this training. This training opportunity that is provided to the facility, does 
the facility use those to train the people. I think that is why Medicare originally established 
that provision is how do you ensure that everyone is trained? They have to be trained from 
orientation and throughout. We have to provide that same training for our patients and their 
families and I would think you would pass that on to you families also or in an area that may 
not have hospice coverage that, that could be utilized. That is where my head went.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It’s not a rhetorical question. I understand the goal here I’m just trying to 
figure out, the devil is in the details. It would nice if none of those situations happened again 
but that would be a fantasy.  
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Tracee Capron: I think what happens are the number of families that we have that we are 
forced to do this with and they are upset about it. I think that is more common than these rare 
circumstances because they happen all the time to us. I can tell you one facility in particular 
when I’m sitting there and I get the call of them saying “I don’t know what to do” or you have 
the daughter that is fighting to find out why are you moving my mother. We are the second 
state in the country with utilization of hospice services. I think some of that comes from the 
barriers that we have imposed. One of them being in basic care, if you know that you have 
to move your family and there is no place to go are you going to pick up that service and 
utilize it, probably not.  
 
Senator Anderson: In this discussion we have to keep in mind that it says the facility may 
keep the patient. They are still the ones who are deciding if they don’t think that things are 
adequate or if they can arrange for adequate services and then they have to make the choice 
of not to keep them. This just allows them to do it.  
 
Tracee Capron: Sometimes there isn’t family or sometimes there are circumstances that 
require more care and that is our responsibility to collaborate and work. Thank you, I respect 
your thoughts on that but think about the patient and the family because it is more common 
than you think.  
 
(49:48-52:28) Rochelle Schaffer, Registered Nurse and President of the North Dakota 
Hospice Organization. Testifying in support of HB 1126. Please see Attachment #3 for 
written testimony.  
 
Senator Anderson: What the land area of ND is and what percent of that land area do your 
11 facilities cover? 
 
Rochelle Schaffer: I wish I had that math. We are actually working on updating it so I don’t 
actually have it. 1/3 of the state is uncovered.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Central and North I would think? 
 
Rochelle Schaffer: Yes, I think north of Minot and those areas and then the south west 
corner I would think that the CHI hospice in Dickinson does not reach all down to the border 
in that corner either.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: How about that central area? 
 
Rochelle Schaffer: I think that is pretty covered because Valley City covers that through CHI 
and Red River is close to covering some of that. I also do think south of Bismarck is 
uncovered from probably an hour south to the border. 
 
Senator Anderson: This is intended to apply hospice services to those areas and those 
areas where hospice services are not available it’s a mood issue because they couldn’t keep 
them there anyways.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any more questions for Mrs. Schaffer? If not, thank you very much.  
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(54:45-1:00:20) Cheryl Rising, FNP and Legislative Liaison for the North Dakota Nurse 
Practitioner Association. Testifying in support of HB 1126. Please see Attachment #4 for 
written testimony.  
 
(1:01:00-1:03:49) Bruce Pritschet, Director of the Division of Health Facilities within 
the Department of Health. Testifying in opposition to HB 1126. Please see Attachment #5 
for written testimony.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I’m wondering if you have any thoughts about the proposed amendment 
that Shelly mentioned earlier about the lines stating that the basic care facility is still 
responsible for the care of the patient.  
 
Bruce Pritschet: That would certainly be a very helpful piece in our opinion would put the 
facility back on the hook so to speak for the overall care of that resident and not rely on the 
family or the volunteer if they couldn’t get there or if another family member made accusations 
against them about their quality or something.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Could you see that as an ok middle ground between what you had 
proposed and the current state where it would still allow the family but then it would create 
that responsibility piece? 
 
Bruce Pritschet: I think that would go a long way to do that.  
 
Senator Hogan: Did you propose this in the house committee and was there a discussion 
about it? 
 
Bruce Pritschet: No, it was not proposed in the house.  
 
Senator Hogan: Okay, I was just curious.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think we all have the same goal here but the GPS route that seems to 
get there is a little bit different, so if we can find a way to make that come together, that would 
be important. We recognize the importance but also the safety factors here. I know that this 
is a challenge but I would like to ask if some of the stake holders in this might have a chance 
to get together again, drink lots of coffee and no one can go to the bathroom until we figure 
out a solution. That is a fairly basic way to describe it. I think we all kind of recognize the 
challenges are here and we want to make this as streamlined as possible but obviously the 
safety of the individual is primary but the liability and the responsibility for who is contracting 
seems to me to be a big issue here. I think we can resolve it but you are all smarter about it 
than we are so, I don’t hear or see anyone else looking to testify but if there is a chance 
before Wednesday afternoon because we have to get these out. If you might be willing to 
chat whether it is conference call or getting together face to face and see if you might come 
up with something we would find that helpful because we would rather do it with you than to 
you. We don’t want to do something bad that is unintended on our part that would hurt either 
of the parties involved of this either. 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Justin Velez 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to basic care facility end of life services. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens the discussion on HB 1126. 
 
Shelly Peterson, President of the North Dakota Long Term Care Association: I was 
really hoping that we would have something. We met with the Health Department 
immediately after the hearing on Monday, we came up with that language that we had 
suggested, the basic care facility continues to be responsible for the care and services of 
that individual, which they were agreeable to. I thought we had some agreement, we do need 
a specific exemption as it said notwithstanding to the life safety issue. The attorney with the 
department was going up at noon on Monday to draft it and we haven’t seen or heard 
anything since. Im not sure because the agreement was, we were just going to wait but we 
knew that you wanted it back by yesterday or today at the latest and we are just waiting.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Is it Darlene Bartz? 
 
Shelly Peterson: Well, Darlene Bartz was one and Bruce Prichet. The Attorney is Tara 
Brandner and I believe she is in the AG’s (Attorney General) office.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: She is wonderful; she is our medical marijuana woman.  
 
Shelly Peterson: I know that when they left, they were in agreement with us on that language 
because they were worried that the responsibility was not clearly with us so, we all agreed 
with the basic care facility shall be responsible of the care and services of the resident.  I 
think that really addresses that but I don’t know what is taking them so long. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Maybe we will just amend it and if they have a heart attack about it, they 
can come to the conference committee and let us know.  
 
Shelly Peterson: That sounds great with me. 
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Madam Chair Lee: What is it, two lines? 
 
Shelly Peterson: That is right.  
 
Senator Hogan: So where are we putting that? 
 
Shelly Peterson: I thought maybe right at the end we could put it, the basic care facility 
continues to be responsible for the care and services of every basic care resident.  
 
Senator Hogan: We are going to put it at the end of line 19 and it would become line 20. 
 
Shelly Peterson: A new line. Thank you, we have been anxiously waiting so we appreciate 
that. We can come back this afternoon and see if you.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We will look at it first this afternoon.  
 
Shelly Peterson: Ok.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We will meet in the afternoon but we will be talking about medical 
marijuana.  
 
Shelly Peterson: Thank you very much.  
 
Madam Chair Lee and the committee move on to discuss amendments for another bill.  
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Justin Velez 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to basic care facility end of life services. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment #1-2 

 
Madam Chair Lee and the committee begin the discussion on HB 1126 with the 
amendment that was proposed to the committee from Bruce Pritschet. (Please see 
Attachment #1) 
 
Senator Anderson: Personally, I don’t see a big problem with family members taking care 
of the individual but here it wants to make it either the hospice agency or contracted services 
and not let just a family member take care of the individual. It seems to me that if the individual 
stayed at home, family members could be taking care of it.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: There are some things that families can do and, some things that they 
can’t and somebody will end up in a hospital if there isn’t a hospice close by to provide some 
of those services and they talked about I think it was a third of the state that does not have 
coverage for hospice services. I just can’t see how easy it’s going to be to get any kind of 
contract signed with family members. You might draft volunteers from church that would help 
just sit with somebody, that kind of stuff.  
 
Senator Anderson: I don’t think it is the intention of the department to do a contract with 
family members. You can contract with the visiting nurse agency or something else, you’re 
not going to contract with the family members that is not their intention.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: They want contracts with caregivers if it is a higher outside caregiver.  
 
Senator Hogan: This is a real change in the intent of the bill.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Yes, I think it is too but, I bring up the fact that we had that amendment 
so that we haven’t ignored it when we’re moving forward and is there anything that will fit in 
and probably not.  
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Senator Anderson: My sense is that we ought to move ahead with it the way it was written 
and give it a chance to see how it works. We have to rely on the basic care facilities a little 
bit to say; if we can’t find the family we will make other arrangements or transfer them out. 
Of course all these stories about a blizzard or whatever else, you know that can always 
happen but you get a 500-year flood or whatever else but you have to take care of that when 
the time comes, you can’t always plan for that detail and encumber so much about what you 
can do because you are worried about that so I think we can move ahead with it. I’ll move a 
DO PASS on it.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So you don’t want the addition that we just talked about? 
 
Senator Hogan: The one that Shelly Peterson proposed. (Please see Attachment #2) 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Now that I have the bill in my hand, could you tell me again what that 
amendment was? 
 
Senator K. Roers: The basic care facility continues to be responsible for the care and 
services of every resident.  
 
Senator Anderson: That is fine, I don’t have a problem with that.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I move to ADOPT AMENDMENT from Shelly Peterson 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Well, Senator Anderson has moved a do pass on the bill.  
 
Senator Anderson: I didn’t get a second for it though, so the motion dies because I don’t 
have a second.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: There it goes. We will just make it official the AMEND is from Senator K. 
Roers, is there a second to the amendment? 
Seconded by Senator O. Larsen 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any discussion on the amendment? If not, please call the roll.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
 
6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT AMENDMENT 
 
Madam Chair Lee: We have the amended bill before us.  
 
Senator Anderson: I will move a DO PASS, AS AMENDED.  
Seconded by Senator K. Roers 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any further discussion? If not, please call the roll.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
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6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED.  
Senator O. Larsen will carry HB 1126 to the floor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on HB 1126. 
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Good morning Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human 

Services Committee. My name is Shelly Peterson, President of the North 

Dakota Long Term Care Association. We represent 214 basic care, 

assisted living and nursing facilities in North Dakota. I am here to testify 

and ask for your support on HB 1126. 

First, I apologize, I want to propose a number of amendments to correct 

an error and more clearly demonstrate the primary purpose of this bill. 

The primary purpose of this bill is to allow residents of a basic care 

facility, who receive an end-of-life diagnosis and they begin to exceed the 

basic care criteria, to elect to remain a resident in the facility if the facility 

themselves, or through contract, can meet all of their needs. It is not our 

desire to put that resident or any other resident at risk or provide any less 

care. 

We appreciate the Department of Health addressing this issue with us 

almost four years ago. We have found few facilities are providing this 

extended service to residents and families. This past year we discussed 

this issue and have identified the primary barrier. We approached the 

Health Department and they were very receptive of our suggestion of 

reconvening a workgroup to better study and find solutions for improving 

access to the end-of-life care in a basic care setting. So that was the path 

we were embarking on until we looked at the law and it appeared the 

primary barrier was routed in ND Century Code and that is why we are 

\ 
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here. It is our goal to work with you on the law revision and then go back 

to the Health Department and work with them on further rule changes to 

better address end-of-life care in this setting. 

North Dakota is very prescriptive on care setting, we do not allow "aging 

in place" and when a person doesn't meet assisted living, basic care or 

nursing facility criteria, they must move. In reviewing the ombudsman 

report, admission and discharge concerns are a primary complaint of 

residents and families. 

Receiving a written discharge notice because you don't meet criteria and 

your needs have changed is very difficult for families to accept. It is 

difficult to leave the setting you've become accustomed too, and even 

more difficult to leave your caregivers who many times you've come to 

depend on and love. Moving is frightening and scary. 

In July 2015, basic care rules were amended and rules were put in place 

to allow basic care facilities to apply for an optional license to provide 

end-of-life care. Very few have applied for the license because of the 

NFPA 101 Life Safety Code requirements. That requirement is dictated in 

line 13 and 14 of the bill and further outlined in rule NDAC 33-03-24.1-

23(8&9) 

8. A facility that retains a resident requiring end-of-life care that is not capable of self­
preservation shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system designed to 
comply with the national fire protection association standard 13 or 13R, or shall meet the 
national fire protection association 101 Life Safety Code, 2012 edition, health care occupancy 
requirements. 

9. Facility evacuation or E scores shall be completed at a minimum of weekly and when there 
is a significant change in the resident's capability for self evacuation when a resident is 
receiving end-of-life care. Facility staffing must be adjusted consistent with the E scores to 
maintain a slow evacuation capability. Hospice staff, family members, volunteers, or other 
nonfacility staff cannot replace required facility staff. 
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We support these standards, however at the end-of-life we would like to 
allow families, volunteers, hospice staff or one-on-one caregivers, 
employed by the resident or their representative, to help meet the 
evacuation needs of the dying person. In the 2015 session you created 
such a section for end-of-life care in assisted living and it works 
exceptionally well. 

We assure you, we must still meet the evacuation scores of all residents, 
but this would allow us to use "non-staff" to meet the requirements for 
the person who is dying. The Health Department raised the question, 
what if the family doesn't show up, they have good intentions but don't 
follow through? That is an excellent question and one that would be 
immediately addressed with family, volunteers or hospice. We must have 
a safe plan in place to meet the evacuation score of all residents. When it 
is not working, volunteers or family do not show up, we must secure staff 
and then meet with the family regarding a new plan or discharge. No one 
is in favor of putting anyone at risk, all lives matter and the basic care 
facility is ultimately responsible. 

We believe though, when a person has been an existing resident and they 
get that diagnosis that they have six months or less to live, if we can 
safely and appropriately meet their needs, or through contract, family or 
volunteers, we would like to have that option available. Often when a 
person receives that diagnosis, they continue to meet our criteria and 
then it is only in the last days or weeks that they need 24/7 care. We 
believe it is cruel to make someone leave in the last days or weeks of life. 
We believe through facility staff, and having the option of utilizing non­
staff at the end of life, we can assure all residents will be appropriately 
cared for and in the event of a disaster safely evacuated. 

Thank you for consideration of this issue which is important to us, 
residents and family. Following my testimony, you will hear testimony 
from Kari Dick, Executive Director with Touchmark at Harwood Groves in 
Fargo, Tracee Capron, and Executive Director of Hospice of the Red River 
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Valley, Rochelle Schaffer, Executive Director of Home Care at Sanford and 
Cheryl Rising, Nurse Practitioner, who has an important story about a 
patient. 

Shelly Peterson, President 
North Dakota Long Term Care Association 
1900 North 11th Street 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
(701) 222-0660 



• Proposed Amendments to HB 1126 

Page 1, Line 15, remove "admit" 

Page 1, Line 16, remove "and" 

Page 1, Line 17, after "family" insert", or the individual's designee," 

Page 1, Line 17, after "volunteer" insert "s" 

Page 1, Line 17, replace "and" with "or" 

Page 1, Line 18, after "facility" insert "," 

Page 1, Line 18, after facility insert "resident or their representative" 

Page 1, Line 18, after "a" insert "person or'' 

Page 1, Line 18, remove "or utilize volunteer and family" 

Page 1, Line 19, remove "support, or both" 
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• 
With amendments, Lines 15-19 would need: 

• 

Notwithstanding contrary provisions in subsection 1, a basic care facility may retain an 
individual in need of end-of-life services if the facility wraps around the individual's family or 
the individual's designee, volunteers or staff services to support the individual through end of 
life. The facility, resident or their representative may contract with a person or a hospice 
agency to meet the needs of the individual. 
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NOTIFICATION TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH REGARDING THE 
PROVISION OF END OF LIFE SERVICES TO A BASIC CARE RESIDENT 
NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DIVISION OF HEAL TH FACILITIES 
SFN 60907 (04-15) 

Optional Service of End of Life Care for Basic Care residents who have elected Hospice services. Notification 
to the Department of Health must occur within 48 hours of the resident electing hospice services or upon 
discharge, transfer, death, or when the resident is no longer capable of self-preservation. 

Provider's Name Telephone Number 

Address I City State I ZIP Code 

Total number of residents receiving end of life services (including this resident) 

INITIAL NOTIFICATION 
Provide the following dates: 
Date 

When the physician identified the terminal illness. 
Date 

When the resident elected Hospice. 
Date 

When the hospice services were implemented in the basic care facility. 

When the required training and competency evaluation was completed. 
1· e When the contract was signed with the Medicare Certified Hospice agency chosen by the 

resident or family members. 
Contact Person for the Medicare Certified Hospice Agency Telephone Number 

Address I City State 

THE RESIDENT IS NO LONGER CAPABLE OF SELF-PRESERVATION 
On what date did the resident become no longer capable of self-preservation? 

Does the end of life plan of care provide for adequate 24 hour bedside care by facility 
staff? 
E-Scores completed weekly and with a significant change in the resident's evacuation 
capability and facility staff adjusted accordingly. 
FINAL NOTIFICATION 
Provide the date for the resident's: 
Discharge Date I Transfer Date 

Administrator's Signature 

Submit completed form to: North Dakota Department of Health 
Division of Health Facilities 

• 
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 301 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0200 
Fax: 701.328.1890 

Date of Death 

Date 

I ZIP Code 

D Yes D No 

D Yes D No 
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HEAL TH RESOURCES SECTION 
600 East Boulevard Avenue, Dept. 301 

Bismarck, ND 58505-0200 
Fax: 70 1 .328 . 1 890 
www.ndhealth.gov 

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: Shelly Peterson, NDL TCA President 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Luci l le Rostad <�t.. 0...Lu. __ ,, ,�=<c_ti.-w"t:JL 
December 1 1 , 20 1 5  

TOPIC: Hospice Services in a Basic Care Facil ity NOT Licensed to provide End of Life Care Services 

This memorandum is in response to your request for clarification related to how long a resident e lecting Hospice 
Services can stay in a Basic Care facil ity that is not l icensed to provide End of Li fe Care Services. 

A resident in a Basic Care faci l ity can elect Hospice Services and stay in a Basic Care facility that is not l icensed 
for End of Life Care Services as long as the resident meets the basic care level of care. 

What does this mean? 

NDCC 23-09.3-08.1 Admission of residents to basic care facility - Restrictions. A basic care facil ity may 
admit and retain only an individual for whom the facil ity provides, d i rectly or through contract, appropriate 
services within the facil ity to attain or maintain the individual at the individual 's highest practicable level of 
functioning. A basic care facility may admit and retain only an individual whose condition and abi l ities are 
consistent with the national fire protection association I O I  l ife safety code requirements. 

This statute is further clarified in North Dakota Administrative Code 33-03-24. 1 -0 1 .  Definitions. 2., 5 .. 6., and 
1 6. Based on this information, the admission and retention criteria for a resident in a Basic Care facil i ty includes 
that the individual may need assistance with activities of daily l iving which means that the resident is able to 
help with most of an activity, but cannot do it entirely alone. This includes eating, nutrition, dressing, personal 
hygiene, mobil ity, toi leting, and behavior management. 

The decision of some Basic Care faci l ities to provide twenty-four-hour a day nurse staffing should not be 
interpreted to mean that the resident's condition requires twenty-four hour a day nursing care. If the resident 
declines to the level where continuous, twenty-four-hour a day nursing or medical care is needed, the individual 
can no longer assist with their own activities of dai ly l iving, or the resident is no longer capable of self 
preservation, with or without assistance, the resident is no longer appropriate to remain in a Basic Care facil ity. 

In  summary, a basic care resident can elect to receive Hospice Services and stay in a Basic Care faci l ity that is 
not l icensed to provide End of Life Care Services, until the resident no longer meets the definition of a basic care 
resident as discussed above, and the care required exceeds the basic care level. If a Basic Care faci l i ty becomes 
l icensed to provide End of Life Care Services, the resident who elects Hospice Services would be able to remain 
in  the facil ity even when the resident exceeds the basic care level of care and requires skil led nursing care. 

I f  you have questions, please contact Luci l le Rostad at 70 1 -328-2352 . 

Health Facilities 
701 . 328.2352 

Life Safety and Construction 
701 .328.4873 
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Food and Lodging 
701 .328 . 1 291  
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33-03-24.1 -21 . Adlult day care services. 

1 .  A facil ity must obtain approval from the department to provide adult day care services . 
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2 .  Use o f  existing space and equ ipment to deliver adult day care services i s  acceptable i f  this 
does not d imin ish the services provided to the residents of the facil ity and their needs being 
met. 

3 .  Medications and treatments must be administered only by order of  a l icensed health care 
practitioner. 

4 .  Records must be maintained of  services provided to individuals participating i n  adult day care 
services. 

5 .  An area al lowing privacy for  adult day care individuals must be developed to  allow for  rest 
periods. 

History: Effective January 1 ,  1 995. 
General  Authority: NDCC 23-09.3-09, 28-32-02(1 )  
Law Implemented: NDCC 23-09.3-04 

33-03-24.1 -22. General building requirements. 

Repealed effective Ju ly 1 ,  201 5. 

33-03-24. 1 -23. Optional end-of-life care service. 

A faci l ity that intends to retain  residents who require end-of-life care must comply with the 
requirements of this section, apply on an application as specified by the department, and receive 
written approval from the department prior to providing the services. The facil ity must meet the fol lowing 
requirements: 

1 .  A facil ity may not retain residents who require more than intermittent nursing care unless the 
resident requires and elects to receive end-of-life care from a l icensed and Medicare-certified 
hospice agency and the facil ity is l icensed to provide end-of-l ife care.  

2 .  A faci l ity providing end-of-l ife care must employ or contract with a reg istered nurse to 
supervise resident care to meet the needs of the residents at al l  times, either directly or 
ind i rectly. The facil ity must employ a l icensed nurse who is on the premises at least forty hours 
per week to identify and respond to resident needs, care plan accord ingly, provide oversight 
related to care, and review and document the resident's individual needs and care provided . 

3 .  I nd ividuals in need of end-of-life care who require skil led nursing care or are not capable of 
self-preservation may not be admitted . 

4 .  The faci l ity and the l icensed and Medicare-certified hospice agency shal l  enter into an 
agreement that delineates responsibi l ities, with the l icensed and Medicare-certified hospice 
agency retain ing the professional management responsibil ity for the hospice service. 

5 .  The faci l ity and l icensed and Medicare-certified hospice agency in consultation with the 
resident shall develop and implement an interd iscipl inary care plan that identifies how the 
resident's needs are met and includes the following:  

a .  What services are to be provided ; 

b .  Who wi ll provide the services , the facil ity o r  hospice agency; 
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c. How the services wil l  be provided; 

d .  Delineation of the roles of facil ity staff and the hospice agency i n  the care plan process; 

e .  Documentation of the care and services that are provided with the signature of the 
person who provided the care and services; and 

f. A l ist of the current medications or biologicals the resident receives and who is 
authorized to admin ister the medications. 

6 .  The facil ity shall notify the department with in forty-eight hours of  election that the resident has 
elected hospice, the date the hospice was elected , and the name of the hospice agency 
serving the resident. 

7 .  The facil ity shall notify the department with in forty-eight hours of  the hospice resident's 
d ischarge, transfer, death , or when the resident is no longer capable of self-preservation .  

8 .  A facil ity that retains a resident requiring end-of-l ife care that is not capable of 
self-preservation shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system designed to 
comply with the national fire protection association standard 1 3  or 1 3R, or shall meet the 
national fire protection association 1 01 Life Safety Code, 201 2 edition,  health care occupancy 
requirements. 

9 .  Facil ity evacuation or  E scores shal l  be  completed at  a min imum of  weekly and when there is 
a significant change in  the resident's capabil ity for self evacuation when a resident is receiving 
end-of-life care. Faci l ity staffing must be adjusted consistent with the E scores to mainta in  a 
slow evacuation capabil ity. Hospice staff, family members,  volunteers , or other nonfacil ity staff 
cannot replace required facil ity staff. 

• 

1 0 . A facil ity approved to provide end-of-life care shall ensure tra in ing and competency evaluation 
• is completed for al l nursing and personal care staff members specific to the care and services 

necessary to meet the needs of the terminally ill resident, and the hospice phi losophy and 
services. The training and competency evaluation may be com pleted , and documented , by the 
facil ity registered nurse, a registered nurse consultant, or a hospice agency nurse. Nursing 
and personal care staff members shal l complete the above training and competency 
evaluation: 

a .  Prior to facil ity approval from the department to provide end-of-life care;  

b.  With in thirty days of employment; and 

c. Annually. 

1 1 .  A facil ity that intends to retain  residents who require end-of-life care shall comply with the 
additiona l requirements in this section and request and receive approval on a printed new 
l icense from the department, prior to providing end-of-life care to residents. 

1 2 . The facil ity approved and l icensed to retain residents in need of end-of-l ife care remains 
responsible for the appropriate del ivery of end-of-life care in  coord ination with the l icensed 
and Medicare-certified hospice agency. If the facil ity is unable, or becomes unable, to meet 
the needs of the resident requiring end-of-life care, the resident rescinds election of the 
hospice benefit , or the facil ity is unable to comply with these requirements, the facil ity shall 
promptly make arrangements to d ischarge or transfer the resident to a safe and appropriate 
placement consistent with the level of care required to meet the resident's needs. 

History: Effective Ju ly 1 ,  201 5 .  
General Authority: NDCC 23-09.3-09 , 28-32-02 

1 5  

• 



• 

• 

• 

Testimony on HB  1 1 26 
Human Services Committee 

January 30, 201 9 

Good morn ing Cha i rman Weisz and members of the House H uman Services 
Com mittee.  
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Due to poor weather cond it ions I ,  Cathy Anhalt ,  with Sanford Home Health , am sharing 
th is testimony on behalf of Tracee Capron ,  Executive D i rector at Hospice of the Red 
River Val ley. 

Hospice of the Red River Val ley is an i ndependent ,  commun ity-based nonprofit hospice , 
serving 1 4  cou nt ies i n  North Dakota . We have he lped thousands of fam i l ies gain the 
va luab le g ift of t ime  with thei r  loved ones , creati ng new memories together wh i le  
receiv ing comfort ,  respect and d ign ity wherever they cal l  home. 

I am here today to testify and ask for your  support of HB 1 1 26 with the proposed North 
Dakota Long Term Care Association amendments. 

F i rst, let me share what hospice care enta i ls .  As hospice providers ,  we are experts at 
caring for people at the end of thei r  l ives .  Some benefits for the patient and caregivers 
include :  

• Patient centered care , honoring the i r  values,  goals ,  and wishes 
• Pa in and symptom control 
• Emotional and spiritua l  support for patient and h is/her loved ones 

Many people in our state cal l  a basic care faci l i ty thei r  home. They, too ,  are entit led to 
receive the Med ica re hospice benefit. H B 1 1 26 as amended wi l l  he lp basic care 
residents have access to hospice services. Today, many are faced with being uprooted 
from home and possibly moving many m i les to a d ifferent faci l i ty away from fami ly, 
friends ,  rout ines a nd careg ivers they know and love .  We are creating a traumatic 
experience for pat ients and fami l ies. Nobody should be forced to move from their  home 
in the i r  fina l  days/weeks/hours of l ife . With your  support of these changes, we cou ld 
keep th is from happen ing .  

Hospice of the Red River Val ley is  committed to being part of the sol ut ion to a l low 
fam i ly ,  friends ,  hospice staff and volunteers to meet the evacuation needs of the patient. 
Our  team of experts wi l l  work with the patient, fam i ly and the faci l i ty to come up with a 
p lan and  a backup p lan to ensure the safety needs of the patient are met as we do i n  a l l  
other care settings .  

Your  support of  HB 1 1 26 has considerable financia l  benefits to the patient, fam i ly, 
fac i l ity and  healthcare system .  When patients are forced to move from basic care to 
ski l led nu rs ing it wi l l  i ncrease the cost to the patient, fam i ly, or the state for those 
ut i l izi ng  the Med icaid benefit. Shift ing from bas ic care to ski l led nurs ing i ncreases cost 

I 



HBI IJ� 
, /30/Jo l cl 

¼\, 2.  

by double o r  trip le .  Even worse , i f  a patient transit ions from basic care to the hospita l ,  
the cost for one day i n  the hospita l  is s im i lar  to 30  days i n  a basic care faci l ity. 

• Just yesterday, we had an  87-year-old patient l iv ing i n  a basic care faci l ity, and because 
she needed add it ional end-of- l ife support ,  she was forced to move out of her  home 
during -40 degree weather  to a ski l led nurs ing faci l ity. She wi l l  l i ke ly d ie with i n  a week-
in an  unfami l ia r  place with a l l  new staff. Is  that fa i r? We can do  better. 

The loved ones left beh ind after someone passes wi l l  a lways remember  how they felt 
when their loved one d ied . There is no 'do-over' or second chances.  We have one 
opportun i ty to help someone l ive to the end of the i r  l ife with comfort ,  d ign ity and 
respect. Please help those l iv ing i n  a basic care faci l ity i n  North Dakota by support ing 
HB 1 1 26 ,  with the proposed amendments .  

Thank  you for you r  he lp .  

Tracee Capron ,  RN ,  BS , Ed . ,  MAOL 
Executive Di rector 
Hospice of the Red River Val ley 

• 
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Good morning Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee. My 
name is Kari Dick. I am the Executive Director at Touchmark at Harwood Groves in Fargo . 
Touchmark at Harwood Groves has a total of 200 Assisted Living, Memory Care, and 
Independent Living homes. Thirty-seven of these homes are licensed as basic care dementia care 
homes. 

I am here today to testify in support of House Bill 1 1 26 related to end-of-life care in Basic Care. 
When the initial "end of life" option was added to the Basic Care licensure process in 20 1 5 , 
Touchmark at Harwood Groves was one of the first facilities to add the provision. Prior to this, 
our community was able to safely accommodate a number of residents through the end of life. 
Even with the change in rules, our goal was to continue to do this for residents when appropriate 
and safe. We have utilized Hospice services for many years, and often long before a resident is in 
his/her final days of life. 

It is important to note that Basic Care facilities may continue to bring Hospice into their 
buildings without the end of life provision. Many residents on Hospice-particularly in a 
dementia care setting-may be up and walking around while on Hospice. The benefits of 
Hospice are not limited to the last days or weeks of life. Hospice care allows residents greater 
pain relief, typically eliminates stressful ER visits and/or hospital stays, and brings greater 
quality of life to persons with dementia while also reducing the burden often placed on family 
members . Partnering with a local hospice agency also provides additional help and resources to 
facilities providing care. 

It is only when the resident consistently no longer meets the community' s  criteria that facilities 
must follow the Basic Care rules regarding end-of-life care. In many cases, this time period may 
only be a few days or even just a week or two. 

Unfortunately, there is one major part of the rule that creates barriers for facilities. The rule 
requires Basic Care facilities to add additional staff members to meet the evacuation 
requirements related to Life Safety Code. In most cases, this applies to night shift coverage-the 
time period when facilities are at the lowest staffing level . Because there is a significant staffing 
shortage in long-term care, facilities do not typically have extra staff ready to take on night shifts 
on short notice and for an uncertain amount of time. 

This leaves the facility with no other option but to hire staff to meet the requirement. The 
recruitment and hiring process itself often takes at least a couple weeks to complete. The new 
staff member then needs to be trained. By the time this process is complete, an individual who is 
truly at the "end of life" will likely have passed away. 

The challenge associated with meeting this requirement prompted Touchmark to opt out of 
continued participation in the optional end-of-life Basic Care licensure. Without the ability to 
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utilize private caregiving agencies and/or family members, we could neither realistically add 
staff when a resident reached the point of not meeting criteria nor could we reasonably predict 
when the need would occur. 

:H3 

Touchrnark still utilizes Hospice services with many residents up until the individual no longer 
meets criteria. Unfortunately, in a number of cases, we have been forced to transfer someone in 
their final days of life to an unfamiliar setting. This is extremely traumatic for a dying person and 
their family. Instead of focusing on their loved one ' s  needs, families are faced with the task of 
managing a move, filling out hours of paperwork, and learning to navigate a new facility. 

This is not because of our inability to safely care for this individual-instead, it ' s  because the 
current requirement does not consider private caregivers and/or family members when 
calculating the facility' s evacuation score . The fix is easy-simply allow family members, 
private caregivers, and other resident representatives to help meet the evacuation requirement. 

Like Ms. Peterson, I want to emphasize that providers are not asking to admit persons who are 
near the end-of-life. I also want to emphasize that there will still be individuals that will require a 
transfer to skilled care. This change will simply allow Basic Care providers , with the help and 
support of a local Hospice agency, to help provide a compassionate end-of-life experience to 
those who can safely live out their last days in the setting which has become their home. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important bill . 
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My name is Rochelle Schaffer, Registered Nurse and President of the North Dakota Hospice 
Organization. Our organization represents the 11 hospice agencies throughout North Dakota. I 
am here to testify and ask for your support of House Bill 1126, relating to basic care facility end­
of-life services. 

I have been a representative and advocate for hospice care in North Dakota for the past 7 years 
in my roles as a Hospice Nursing Director and as the State Hospice Organization's President. 

Hospice is a specialized type of end of life care. It is a team of interdisciplinary members that 
include physicians, nurses, nursing assistants, social workers, chaplains, volunteers, and 
pharmacists all working together. Along with the individual and family, the hospice team 
develops a care plan to manage symptoms and promote comfort and safety. 

Hospice also provides financial coverage for medications and equipment needs. The hospice 
team is available 24 hours per day to provide support and guidance to the individual and family . 
In the months following a hospice death, bereavement services are offered to family and friends. 

Hospice care can be provided in any setting an individual calls "home"- a long term care facility , 
a private home, a group home, or an assisted living facility. Due to current regulation, this is not 
often offered to a patient living in a North Dakota Basic Care Facility. 

Together Hospice and Basic Care Facilities in North Dakota can work together to enable these 
individuals to stay in the place they call home, just as we currently do in private homes and 
assisted living facilities. This can be accomplished if the Basic Care Facility is able to permit the 
use of family and volunteer services, along with Hospice to support the individual through their 
end of life. Hospice is a benefit to a Medicare beneficiary, as well as most health plans. 
Individuals have the right to use the benefit just as family has the right to assist in the care of 
their loved ones, no matter the setting in which they reside. Also consider the potential financial 
burden on the individual, the family and the health systems if this individual is moved to a higher 
level of care setting. 

I ask that you consider approving House Bill 1126 to ensure the Hospice Benefit with family and 
volunteer support is a choice to North Dakota individuals living in Basic Care Facilities. 

Thank you. 

Rochelle Schaffer, RN, MHA 
President, ND Hospice Organization 
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I am Cheryl Rising, F N P  and legislative liaison for the North Dakota N urse Practitioner 
Association. I am here to testify in support of H B  1 126 a bill for an Act to amend and reenact 
section 23-09 .3 -08 . 1  of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to basic care facility end-of-life 
services 

Currently when an individual resides in basic care, is at end of life, and the family requests to 
have supportive cares, the organization may not keep the resident in the facility and start 
hospice d ue to the regulations. I personally go out to assisted living buildings and basic care 
areas to provide primary care for many individuals in these types of residence. I have had 
personal experience with wanting to keep a resident in basic care in their own room, 
surrounded by familiar care givers, family, and have had to explain to the family we are unable 
to start hospice here, we must send the loved one to the ED  and find a place that will be able to 
start hospice. This is agonizing for the care giver and family to disrupt the relationship that has 
developed which may have been for years. The most recent experience was a resident that was 
at basic care, end stage dementia, started to decline, the family wanted hospice and we had to 
transfer to the ED. This was a difficult time and an inappropriate use of health care dollars and 
emergency room charges. 

The most recent situation in the last two weeks that I as involved with was a patient in an 
organization that could keep the resident and start hospice if needed . I received a call as I as 
finishing work on a Thursday that an individ ual had taken a turn for the worse and could I 
please come and see the resident. I immediately went to the individ ual's residence. I knew this 
patient was declining over the months. I had spoken with the sister, the only living relative, 
about starting hospice in October and again in December; however, she was so distraught that 
she was unable to decide at that time. The resident continued in a residential home with a care 
giver through an organization in Bismarck. I called hospice and left a message while I was in 
route to see the patient and if the sister wanted hospice would hospice be able to admit and 
when. I arrived at the apartment, the sister arrived with in 5 minutes. Pt was actively dying, low 
oxygen saturation, and struggling to breath. The sister did not want her to be moved, asked to 
keep the patient in her own bed, surrounded with the care givers that have cared for her for 
years. Hospice returned my phone call, and after discussion stated they would be there as soon 
as they could get the on-call hospice nurse the packet for admission and get there. I had 
already written orders for Ativan and Morphine sulfate for comfort. By the time the wonderful 
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hospice n urse arrived the first dose of At ivan had been given, and the pat ients breathing 
improved. I was so gratefu l to leave knowing she was now be ing cared for by her own cari ng  
team  and hospice. The patient l ived for 48 hours and exp ired. The sister was gratefu l for a l l  the 
lovi ng care and comfort. If this fac i l ity was not ab le  to have hosp ice the pat ient wou ld have 
been sent to the hospita l .  This was a much different experience for this fam i ly member. 

NDNPA urges a do pass on this b i l l  so individua ls a nd fam i l i es can choose hospice where they 
reside. 

Cheryl R is i ng, FNP, FAANP 

North Dakota Nurse Practit ioner Associat ion 
www. ndnpa .org 
Legislation Tracking Team 
Chery l  R is i ng :  crisi ngnp@gmai l .com 701-527-2583 
Jenna  Herman : jmherman@umary.edu 612-518-3647 
Tara Brandner: tbrandner04@gma i l .com 701-471-9745 
Additiona l  Legislative Committee 
Tisha Scheuer: tscheuer28@gma i l .com 
Al l ison Pelt ier :  a l l ison . pe lt ier@ ndsu .edu 
Pau l a  Moch : pa u la mochfnp@gmai l .com 
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Nurse Practitioner Association 

APRNs in ND 

Methodology: Al l  providers are counted as  one full-time equivalent {FTE}. Providers that are dual ly 

licensed in more than one discipline are split equally among each discipline. Those that indicated more 

than one practice state are divided equally to each state and providers that indicated more than one 

practice location are divided equally to each site. 

APRNS: As of September 10, 2018, there are 1,534 advanced practice registered nurses {APRNs) licensed 

in North Dakota. Of the total APRNs, there are 1071 nurse practitioners {NPs}, 394.5 certified registered 

nurse anesthetists (CRNAs}, 46.5 are clinical nurse specialists (CNS}, 21 certified nurse midwives {CNMs}, 

and 2 nurse clinicians {NCs). Twelve APRNS were dua lly licensed, 7 CNS/NPs, 4 CNM/NPs and 1 

CRNA/NP. As of November 11, 2018, 1,111 APRNs have prescriptive authority. 

ND APRNs by Employment State 

788.7 
1200 

1000 

800 297.5 

600 
41.5 

261. 
16.5 2 

400 90 ... � � North Dakota 
5 4 

200 
� � 

20. 28 
Other States 

0.5 
� � � Unknown 

CRNA CNS CNM NC NP APRN 

• Unknown • Other States • North Dakota 

Table 1 

Since 2016, there has been a 20% increase 

{246} of APRNs licensed in North Dakota which 

included a 29% increase in NPs, 17% increase in 

CNMs, 4% increase in CRNAs, 8% decrease in 

CNSs, and no change in NCs. See table 1 .  

ND Licensed APRNs by Employment State 

Unknown Other States North Dakota 

2016 2018 2016 2018 2016 2018 

CRNA 8 7 91.5 90 278.5 297.5 

CNS 0 0 5.5 5 45 41.5 

CNM 0 0.5 1 4 17 16.5 

NC 0 0 0 0 2 2 

NP 12 20.5 166 261.8 652.5 788.7 

APRN 20 28 264 360.8 995 1146.2 
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Nurse Practitioners :  North Da kota has  1071 l icensed N Ps, 788.7 FTE (73 .6%) i nd icated they a re 

cu rrent ly  p ract ic ing i n  North Da kota at least pa rt of the yea r. Of those p ract ic ing with i n  North Da kota, 

70 .5% a re p ra ct i c ing in the more u rba n cities of B isma rck, Mandan, Fa rgo, West Fa rgo, G ra nd Forks a nd 

M inot with 27 .8% p ract ic ing i n  more rura l  a reas, and  1 .7% a re u n known .  P lease see attached maps of 

psych i atr ic N Ps a n d  psych iatr ic N Ps a nd CNS comb ined .  

A l though l i ce n sed i n  No rth Da kota, 261 .8  FTE N Ps i nd icated states other  tha n North  Da kota as  the i r  

State of e m p loyment  i nc l ud ing M i nnesota (79 .5 ) ,  South Da kota (32 ), Texas (25 .7 ), M issou ri (23 ), 

Ar izona  ( 1 1 ) ,  Wiscons i n  ( 10), Wash ington (8) ,  Monta na (7 ), I owa (6 .5 ), Ca l iforn ia  (6 ) ,  F lo rida (5 .7) , 

Georg ia (5) , Co lorado  (4), Oh io (3 .5) , Nebraska ( 3 . 2 ) , Uta h ( 3 ), Arka nsas ( 2 ), Hawa i i  ( 2 ), I l l i no i s  (2) , 

Lou is ia na  ( 2 ), M a ry la nd  ( 2 ), New Je rsey (2 ), N evada  (2) , Massachusetts ( 1 . 5 ), V i rg i n ia ( 1 . 2 ), Connecticut 

( 1 ) , I nd i a n a  

( 1 ), Kentucky ( 1 ), M iss iss ipp i  ( 1 ), North Ca rol i n a  ( 1 ), New Mexico ( 1 ), New York ( 1 ), Ok l ahoma ( 1 ), 

O regon ( 1 ) , Pen nsylva n i a  ( 1 ), Tennessee ( 1 ), Ma i ne  (0 .5 )  a nd  West V i rg i n ia (0 .5 ) .  

Of the  n u rse p ract it ione rs pract ic ing i n  North Da kota 80 .2% (632 .2/788 .7 )  i nd icated the i r  specia lty a rea 

was fa m i ly med ic i ne .  Other specia lt ies i nc l uded adu l t, geronto logy, neonata l ,  ped iatric, psych iatr ic, and  

women's  hea l th .  See cha rt be low. 

2018 N urse Practitioners Practicing in 

North Dakota by Specia lty 

L.\ 

• Adu lt 

• Fa m i ly 

• Ge ronto logy 

• Neonata l  

• Ped iatr ic 

• Psych i a t ry 

• Womens Hea lth 
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Tab le  2 

North Dakota N u rse Practitioners by Specialty 
2016 2018 

Adu lt Medicine 42 .5  54 
Fami ly Medicine 5 19 .5  632 . 2  
Gerontology 19 17 
Neonatal Med icine 18 20 
Pediatric Medic ine 1 1  16 .5  
Psych iatry 20 29 
Women's Health Care 22 .5  20  
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S ince 2016, the n u m be r  of n u rse p ractit ioners 
p ract ic ing i n  ped iatr ics i ncreased by 50%, 
psych iatry (45%), a d u lt med ic ine (27 .06%), 
fa m i l y  med ic ine ( 2 1 . 69%), a n d  neonata l 
( 1 1 . 1 1%) wh i l e  geronto logy decreased by 
10 .53% a n d  women ' s  hea lth ca re ( 1 1 . 1 1%) .  See 
Ta b l e  2. Cu rrent ly, 29 n u rse p ractit ioners 
speci a l ize i n  psych iat ry .  Of those, 17 .5  (60 .3%) 
p ract ice wit h i n  the  more u rba n c i t ies of 

B i sma rck, Fa rgo, West Fa rgo, G rand  Forks and M i not .  P lease see attached map of the locat io ns of N Ps 
with a spec ia lty i n  psych iatry. 

Cl in ical Nu rse Specia l ists : In North Da kota 46.5 CNS a re l i censed of which 41 .5  (89. 2%) i n d icated they 
cu rrent ly p ract ice i n  the  State . Of the 41 .5  CNS cu rrent ly practic ing i n  No rth  Da kota 33 . 5  (80.7%) a re 
pract ic ing i n  the mo re u rba n cit ies of B ismarck, Fa rgo, G ra nd  Fo rks, a nd  M i not. P lease see attached map .  

A ltho ugh  l i censed  i n  N o rth Da kota, 5 CNS i nd icated they  p ract ice o uts ide of the State .  These i nc luded 
M i n nesota ( 2 .5 ), A labama ( 1 ), Iowa (0 .5 ) ,  Oh io (0 .5 )  a nd  South Da kota (0. 5 ) .  Of the c l i n ica l n u rse 
spec ia l ists p ract ic ing in No rth Da kota, 60. 2% i nd icated the i r  spec ia lty a rea was psych iat ry a nd 26 .5% 
i nd icated a d u lt med i c i ne .  P lease see cha rt be low. 

Clinical Nu rse Specialists Practicing in North 

Dakota by Specialty 

• Adu lt 

• D ia betes Mgmt 

• Genet ics 

• Geronto logy 

• Ped iat r i c  

• Per inata l 

• Psych i at ry 
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Tab l e  3 

North Dakota C l in ical Nu rse Special ists by Special!Y 
2016 2018 

Adu lt 12 .5  1 1  
Diabetes Management 1 1 
Genetics 1 1 
Gerontology 2 2 
Ped iatric 0 .5  
Perinata l 2 1 
Psych iatry 26 .5 25  
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S ince 2016, the n u m be r  of CNSs p ract ic ing i n  
No rth  Da kota has  dec l i ned by  7 .8%.  Those 
p ract ic ing i n  a d u lt med ic ine dec l i ned by 12% 
and psych iatry by 5 . 66%. See Ta b le  3 .  Of the 
25  p ract ic ing i n  psych iat ry, 74% { 18 .5 )  CNSs 
a re p ract ic ing in the  more u rba n a reas of 
B i sma rck, Fa rgo, G ra n d  Fo rks a nd M i not .  
P l ea se see attached maps of psych iatr ic CNSs 
a nd  psych i atr ic CNSs a nd N Ps com bi ned .  

Certified Nu rse Midwives: A tota l of 2 1  CNMs  a re l icensed i n  No rth Da kota of wh ich 1 6 .5 i nd icated they 
a re p ra ct ic ing w it h i n  the State .  Two o r  12 . 1% of the C N M s  a re p ract ic ing i n  r u ra l  a reas of Be lcou rt a nd  
Wi l l isto n .  The o the r  14 . 5  ind icated they were p ract ic ing i n  t h ree o f  the more u rba n cit ies i nc l ud ing 
Fa rgo { 7 . 5 ), M i not (5 ) ,  and G ra nd Forks (2 ) .  A l though the tota l n u m be r  of l i censed C N M s  i nc reased in 
2018 com pa red  to 2016, those that i nd icated they p ractice i n  No rth Da kota decreased by 0 .5  FTE .  P lease 
see atta ched m a p  . 

Certified Registered Nu rse Anesthetists : North Da kota has  394.5 l icensed CRNAs of wh ich 297 .5 
i nd icated they a re pract ic ing i n  North Da kota . Of the CRNAs pract ic i ng i n  No rth  Da kota, 84 . 1% a re 
p ract ic ing i n  the  fou r  most u rba n cit ies of B isma rck, Fa rgo, G ra nd  Forks a nd  M i not; 14 .2% a re pract ic ing 
i n  r u ra l  a reas  a n d  1 .7% d id not i nd icate a practice c ity .  The tota l n u m be r  of CRNAs pract ic ing i n  North 
Da kota i n c reased by 6 . 8% from 2016 {278.5)  to 2018 {297 . 5 ) .  P lease see attached map .  

Nurse C l in ic ians: As  i n  2016, two n u rse c l i n ic ia ns  conti n ue  to p ractice i n  No rth Da kota i n  2018 .  Both 
n u rse c l i n ic ia n s  pract ice i n  u rba n a reas  and speci a l ize i n  rehab i l itat ion  and psych iatry .  
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- Nurse Practitioners practicing with in  county 
i:I Nurse Practitioners' FTE increased since 20 1 6  * Nurse Practitioners' FTE decreased since 201 6 
i:[ No change Nurse Practit ioners' FTE since 201 6  

Unknown ( 1 3) 

• Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed N urse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one site, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked . 
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BURKE BOTTINEAU CAVALIER 

RAMSEY 

DUNN 

.-----L--------.a. GRA•�--� H ETTING ER 
SLOPE 

BOWMAN 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H D A K O T A  

MclNTOSH DICKEY 

- Psych iatric Nu rse Practitioners practicing with in county 
cO=> Psychiatric N u rse Practitioners' FTE increased since 201 6  
+ Psych iatric N u rse Practit ioners' FTE decreased since 201 6  
9 No change Psych iatric Nurse Practitioners' FTE since 201 6  

SARGE NT 

Nu rse Pract i t ioner Associa t ion • Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one  s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked. 
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20 1 8  North Dakota Certified N u rse M idwives (CN M) ,  
Cl i n i ca l Nu rse Specia l ists (CNS) ,  and Nu rse Cl i n ic ians (NC) 
DIVIDE 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 

ST. 

BURKE CAVALIER PEMBINA 

RAMSEY 

.
--

---L--H"""!ETT!"""""I N'""!G�E"'!'R---I; GRA...rrt--.. 

SLOPE 

BOWMAN 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H  D A K O T A  
Nu rse Practi t ioner Assoc iat ion 

MclNTOSH DICKEY SARG ENT 

- CNMs, CNS, and/or NC practicing with in  county CNM Unknown (0.5) 

A CNMs' FTE increased since 201 6 ti CNS' FTE increased since 201 6 

J... CNMs' FTE decreased since 201 6 * CNS' FTE decreased since 20 1 6  
A No change CNM's FTE since 201 6 ti No change CNS' FTE since 20 1 6  
� No change NC's FTE since 201 6 

• Fu l l  time was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that indicated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked. 

q 

1 1 / 18  

1-J BJ Jci(p 
lj30Jc20 1q 
¾ 5  



20 1 8  North Dakota 
Psych iatric C l i n ica l  Nu rse Specia l ists 

DIVIDE 

McKE NZIE 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 

SLOPE 

BOWMAN 

B ILLI NGS 

BURKE 

MOUNTRAIL 

DUNN 

ST. 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H  D A K O T A  
Nu rse Practi t ioner Assoc iat ion 

RENVILLE BOTTINEAU ROLETTE TOWNER CAVALIER 

KIDDER 

LOGAN LAMOURE 

Mcl NTOSH DICKEY 

c::J Psychiatric CNS practicing with in county 
O Psychiatric CNS' FTE increased since 201 6 
+ Psychiatric CNS' FTE decreased since 201 6 
o No change Psychiatric CNS' FTE since 201 6 

PEMBINA 

• Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked . 

10 
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20 1 8 North Dakota Psych iatri c 
Nu rse Practit ioners and Cl i n i ca l  N u rse Specia l ists f/8112� 

l/30/,;vl<j 
DIVIDE 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 

BILL I NGS 

BURKE 

DUNN 

S"t 

RENVILLE BOTTIN EAU CAVALIER # 5 

RAMSEY 

.----11.--------� GRA'�--­
H ETTINGER 

SLOPE 

BOWMAN 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H  D A K O T A  
Nu rse Practi t ioner Associa t ion 

Mcl NTOSH DICKEY SARGE NT 

1 1 /1 8  
- Psychiatric NPs and/or CNS practicing with in  county 

c():, Psychiatric NPs' FTE increased since 20 1 6  <> Psych iatric CNS' FTE increased s ince 201 6 
+ Psychiatric NPs' FTE decreased since 20 1 6  + Psychiatric CNS' FTE decreased since 201 6  
c(}, No change Psychiatric NPs' FTE since 201 6  <> No change Psychiatric CNS' FTE since 201 6  

* Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was sp l it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked. 
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20 1 8 North Dakota 
Cert ifi ed Reg istered N u rse Anesthetists 

DIVIDE 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 

SLOPE 

BURKE 

DUNN 

B ILL INGS 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H  D A K O T A  
Nu rse Practi t ioner Associa t ion 

BOTTINEAU CAVALIER 

MclNTOSH D ICKEY Oakes (2)  

Ash ley ( 1 )  

SARGENT 

- CRNAs practicing within county Unknown (5) 

1:I CRNAs' FTE increased s ince 201 6 * CRNAs' FTE decreased since 201 6  

1:I No change CRNA's FTE s ince 201 6 
• Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed N urse practit ioner. For those that ind icated more than one s ite, 

the FTE was sp l it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked. 
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N O R T H  

Dakota 
Be Ler3e n d a ry. '" 

Hea l th 
H ouse B i l l  1 1 2 6 

H ouse H u m a n  Services Co m m ittee 

J a n u a ry 3 0, 20 1 9  

Good m o r n i n g  C h a i r m a n  We isz a n d m e m be rs of t he  H u ma n  Se rv i ce  

C o m m ittee .  My  n a m e  i s  B ru ce P r i ts ch et, D i recto r of t he  D iv i s i o n  of H ea l t h  

F ac i l i t i es  w i th i n  t he  Depa rtm ent  of H ea l t h .  I am h e re to o p pose  a nd p rovi d e  

i n fo rmat i o n  on  H o use  B i l l  1 1 26 re l ated to p ro posed c h a n g es t o  l a n g u a g e  

w i th i n  N o rth  Da kota Centu ry C o d e  Sect i o n  2 3 - 09 . 3 - 08 . 1 reg a rd i ng ca re 

p rov i d ed to e n d -of- l i fe res i de nts i n  ba s i c  ca re fa c i l i t i e s .  

The  r • 1 aj o r  c h a n g es to  state l aw i n c l u d ed i n  H B  1 1 26, w i th  t he  p ro posed 

a m end men +-s ,  re l a te to a l l owi n g  the  ba s i c  ca re fa c i l i ty to reta i n  a n  i n d iv id u a l  i n  

need  of e n d - of- l i fe s e rv i ces a n d  fo r ca re to b e  p rov i ded  to meet t he  

• 
i n d iv id u a l ' s n eeds  by fa m i ly, i n d iv id u a l ' s d es i g nee, o r  vo l u ntee rs, a s  we l l  a s  by 

fa c i l i ty staff, u s i n g  a wra p a ro u n d  staff i n g  co ncept. We do n ot s u p po rt t h i s  

c h ange  beca use  we  be l i eve t h i s  j eo p a rd izes t he  ca re a nd sa fety of t he  e n d  o f  

l i fe res i d e nt as  we l l  a s  a l l  ot h e r  res i d e nts i n  t he  fa c i l i ty .  

Afte r a req u est fro m bas i c  ca re fa c i l i t i es ,  a wo rkg ro u p  was put tog et h e r  

t o  a d d ress t � n d - of- l i fe se rv ices  i n  ba s i c  ca re .  The  d e pa rtment  of  hea l th  

p ro m u l g atE J ru l e s  wh i ch  a l l ow bas i c  ca re fa c i l i t i e s  to p rov i d e  an  o pt i o n a l  e n d ­

of- l i fe se rv i  e to ex i st i n g  res i d e nts i n  t h e  ba s i c  ca re fa c i l i ty a s  l o n g  a s  they 

cont ra ct wi t  n a hosp i ce  a g e n cy, p rovi d e  staff ed u cat i o n  re l ated to e n d -of- l i fe 

ca re, a n d  staff i n  s u c h  a ma n n e r  to p rovi d e  s e rv ices  to m eet t he  hea l th  a n d  

sa fety needs  o f  a l l  res i dents . These  ru l es beca m e  effect ive J u ly 1 ,  20 1 5 .  The  

• ru l es a l l ow the  fa c i l i ty to kee p  ex ist i n g  res i d e nts i n  n eed of e n d -of- l i fe s k i l l ed 



• 
n u rs i n g  ca re a s  l o n g  as  t hey a re a b l e  to m eet t he  h ea l t h  a n d sa fety needs  of  

t he  res i d e nt wi t h o u t  co m pro m i s i n g  the  h e a l th  a n d sa fety of  oth e r  res i d e nts i n  

t h e  fa c i l i ty .  

I n  o rd e r  fo r a bas i c  ca re fa c i l i ty to kee p  a n  e n d - of- l i fe s k i l l ed  res i d e nt, 

t h e  expecta t i o n  i s  t ha t  the  fa c i l i ty cont i n u e  to meet t h e  ca re a n d  sa fety needs, 

d i rect l y  o r  t n ro u g h cont ra ct, fo r a l l  res i d e nts i n  t he  fa c i l i ty .  T h i s  mea ns  t h a t  a s  

t h e  res i d e nt ' s  co n d i t i o n  d e c l i n es , a d d i t io n a l  fa c i l i ty staff may  n eed t o  be  

a d d ed to m eet t h e  hea l th  and  safety n eeds  of t h e  res i d e nt, a s  we l l  a s  e ns u re 

t h a t  t he  h e  I t h  a n d  safety needs  of a l l  res i d e nts i n  t h e  fa c i l i ty co nt i n u e  to be  

m et.  Fa m i l y m e m bers o r  t he  i n d iv i d u a l ' s d e s i g nee  ca n be p rese n t  to s i t  w i th  

t h e  res i d e nt and  p rovi d e  e m ot i o n a l  s u p po rt wh i l e  t h e  res i d e nt i s  g o i n g  

• 
t h ro u g h t h e  dy i n g  p rocess w i th  n o  expectat i o n  that  t hey a re the  a ctu a l  ca re 

p rov i d e r  a n d  res p o n s i b l e  fo r eva c u at i o n  of t he i r l oved o n e  i n  case  of a n  

e m e rg e n cy. 

• 

T h i s  e n d s  my test i m o ny a n d  I wo u l d  be g l a d  to a d d ress a ny co m m i ttee 
q u est i o n s  . 
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Testimony on HB 1126 

Senate Human Services Committee 

March 11, 2019 
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Good morning Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services 

Committee. My name is Shelly Peterson, President of the North Dakota 

Long Term Care Association. We represent 214 basic care, assisted living 

and nursing facilities in North Dakota. I am here to testify and ask for 

your support on engrossed HB 1126. 

The primary purpose of this bill is to allow residents of a basic care 

facility, who receive an end-of-life diagnosis and they begin to exceed the 

basic care criteria, to elect to remain a resident in the facility if the facility 

themselves, or through contract, can meet all of their needs. It is not our 

desire to put that resident or any other resident at risk or provide any less 

care. The basic care facility continues to be responsible for the care of 

this resident, nothing in HB 1126 changes that responsibility. 

We appreciate the Department of Health addressing this issue with us 

almost four years ago. We understand six of sixty-four basic care faci l ities 

are providing this extended service to residents and families through the 

end-of-life optional license. This past year we discussed the primary 

barrier regarding why more basic care facilities are not providing this 

care. We approached the Health Department and they were receptive of 

our suggestion of reconvening a workgroup to better study and find 

solutions for improving access to the end-of-life care in a basic care 

setting. So that was the path we were embarking on until we looked at 

the law and it appeared the primary barrier was routed in ND Century 

Code and that is why we are here. It is our goal to work with you on the 

law revision and then go back to the Health Department and work with 

them on further rule changes to better address end-of-life care in this 

setting. 
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North Dakota is very prescriptive on care setting, we do not allow "aging 

in place" and when a person doesn't meet assisted living, basic care or 

nursing facility criteria, they must move. In reviewing the ombudsman 

report, admission and discharge concerns are a primary complaint of 

residents and families. 

Receiving a written discharge notice because you don't meet criteria and 

your needs have changed is very difficult for families to accept. It is 

difficult to leave the setting you've become accustomed too, and even 

more difficult to leave your caregivers who many times you've come to 

depend on and love. Moving is frightening and scary. 

In July 2015, basic care rules were amended and rules were put in place 

to allow basic care facilities to apply for an optional license to provide 

end-of-life care. Few have applied for the license because of the NFPA 

101 Life Safety Code requirements. That requirement is dictated in line 

13 and 14 of the bill and expanded in rule NDAC 33-03-24.1-23(8&9) 

8. A facility that retains a resident requiring end-of-life care that is not capable of self­
preservation shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system designed to 
comply with the national fire protection association standard 13 or 13R, or shall meet the 
national fire protection association 101 Life Safety Code, 2012 edition, health care occupancy 
requirements. 

9. Facility evacuation or E scores shall be completed at a minimum of weekly and when there 
is a significant change in the resident's capability for self evacuation when a resident is 
receiving end-of-life care. Facility staffing must be adjusted consistent with the E scores to 
maintain a slow evacuation capability. Hospice staff, family members, volunteers, or other 
nonfacility staff cannot replace required facility staff. 

We support these standards, however at the end-of-life we would like to 
allow families, volunteers, hospice staff or one-on-one caregivers, 
employed by the resident or their representative, to help meet the 
evacuation needs of the dying person. In the 2015 session you created 
such a section for end-of-life care in assisted living and it works 
exceptionally well. 
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We assure you, we must still meet the evacuation scores of all residents, * 1 f:J · :) 
but this would allow us to use "non-staff" to meet the requirements for 
the person who is dying. The Health Department raised the question, 
what if the family doesn't show up, they have good intentions but don't 
follow through? That is an excellent question and one that would be 
immediately addressed with family, volunteers or hospice. We must have 
a safe plan in place to meet the evacuation score of all residents. When it 
is not working, volunteers or family do not show up, we must secure staff 
and then meet with the family regarding a new plan or discharge. No one 
is in favor of putting anyone at risk, all lives matter and the basic care 
facility is ultimately responsible. 

We believe though, when a person has been an existing resident and they 
get that diagnosis that they have six months or less to live, if we can 
safely and appropriately meet their needs, or through contract, family or 
volunteers, we would like to have that option available. Often when a 
person receives that diagnosis, they continue to meet our criteria and 
then it is only in the last days or weeks that they need extra care. We 
believe it is cruel to make someone leave in the last days or weeks of life. 
We believe through facility staff, and having the option of utilizing non­
staff at the end of life, we can assure all residents will be appropriately 
cared for and in the event of a disaster safely evacuated. 

Basic care rules currently allow a resident to access their home-health 
benefit while a resident in the facility. This happens when the resident 
has a hospitalization, comes back in a weakened state, and needs a little 
extra help for short period of time. They are expected to return to their 
baseline functioning but need some "extra" help. The resident under 
their Medicare, home health benefit or privately, contracts for this extra 
help. The basic care facility is still responsible for the care for this 
resident in this circumstance and coordinates home-health for this 
temporary situation. Residents get sick and this is a good way to support 
them to return to this level of care. We see this hospice provision, acting 
very similar. The basic care facility is still responsible and they coordinate 
services, volunteers and family in this last stage of life. 
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Thank you for consideration of this issue which is important to us, � 1 PJ· lf 
residents and family. Following my testimony, you will hear testimony 
from Kari Dick, Executive Director with Touchmark at Harwood Groves in 
Fargo, Tracee Capron, and Executive Director of Hospice of the Red River 
Valley, Rochelle Schaffer, Executive Director of Home Care at Sanford and 
Cheryl Rising, Nurse Practitioner, who has an important story about a 
patient. 

Shelly Peterson, President 
North Dakota Long Term Care Association 
1900 North 11th Street 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
(701 )  222-0660 



33-03-24. 1 -21 . Adult day care services. 

1 .  A facility must obtain approval from the department to provide adult day care services. 
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2.  Use of existing space and equ ipment to deliver adult day care services is acceptable i f  this 
does not diminish the services provided to the residents of the facility and their needs being 
met. 

3 .  Medications and treatments must be administered only by  order of  a l icensed health care 
practitioner. 

4 .  Records must be maintained of services provided to individuals participating in  adult day care 
services. 

5 .  An area allowing privacy for adult day care individuals must be developed to allow for rest 
periods. 

History: Effective January 1 ,  1 995. 
General  Authority: NDCC 23-09.3-09, 28-32-02(1 ) 
Law Implemented: NDCC 23-09.3-04 

33-03-24.1 -22. General building requirements. 

Repealed effective July 1 ,  201 5. 

33-03-24.1 -23. Optional end-of-life care service. 

A facil ity that intends to retain res idents who require end-of-life care must comply with the 
requirements of this section,  apply on an application as specified by the department, and receive 
written approval from the department prior to providing the services. The facility must meet the fol lowing 
requirements: 

1 .  A facility may not retain residents who require more than intermittent nursing care unless the 
resident requires and elects to receive end-of-l ife care from a l icensed and Medicare-certified 
hospice agency and the facility is l icensed to provide end-of-l ife care. 

2 .  A facility providing end-of-life care must employ or contract with a registered nurse to 
supervise resident care to meet the needs of the residents at all times, either directly or 
indirectly. The facility must employ a l icensed nurse who is on the premises at least forty hours 
per week to identify and respond to resident needs, care plan accordingly, provide oversight 
related to care, and review and document the resident's individual needs and care provided .  

3 .  I nd ividuals in need of end-of-life care who require skilled nursing care or are not capable of 
self-preservation may not be admitted. 

4 .  The facility and the l icensed and Medicare-certified hospice agency shall enter i nto an 
agreement that delineates responsibilities, with the licensed and Medicare-certified hospice 
agency retaining the professional management responsibil ity for the hospice service. 

5 .  The facility and l icensed and Medicare-certified hospice agency in consultation with the 
resident shall develop and implement an interd isciplinary care plan that identifies how the 
resident's needs are met and includes the following : 

a .  What services are to be provided ; 

b .  Who wi ll provide the services, the facility or hospice agency; 

14  



c. How the services wil l  be provided; 
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d .  Delineation of the roles of  facility staff and the hospice agency in the care plan process; 

e .  Documentation of the care and services that are provided with the signature of the 
person who provided the care and services; and 

f. A list of the current medications or biologicals the resident receives and who is 
authorized to administer the medications. 

6. The facility shall notify the department within forty-eight hours of election that the resident has 
elected hospice, the date the hospice was elected , and the name of the hospice agency 
serving the resident. 

7 .  The facil ity shall notify the department within forty-eight hours of the hospice resident's 
discharge, transfer, death , or when the resident is no longer capable of self-preservation. 

8 .  A facil ity that retains a resident requiring end-of-life care that is not capable of 
self-preservation shall be equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system designed to 
comply with the national fire protection association standard 1 3  or 1 3R, or shall meet the 
national fire protection association 1 01 Life Safety Code, 201 2 edition, health care occupancy 
requirements. 

9 .  Facil ity evacuation or  E scores shall be completed at  a minimum of weekly and when there is 
a significant change in the resident's capability for self evacuation when a resident is receiving 
end-of-life care. Facility staffing must be adjusted consistent with the E scores to maintain a 
slow evacuation capability. Hospice staff, family members, volunteers, or other nonfacility staff 
cannot replace required facility staff. 

1 0 . A facil ity approved to provide end-of-life care shall ensure training and competency evaluation 
is completed for all nursing and personal care staff members specific to the care and services 
necessary to meet the needs of the terminally ill resident, and the hospice philosophy and 
services. The training and competency evaluation may be completed, and documented, by the 
facil ity registered nurse, a registered nurse consultant, or a hospice agency nurse. Nursing 
and personal care staff members shall complete the above training and competency 
evaluation:  

a. Prior to facility approval from the department to provide end-of-l ife care; 

b .  Within thirty days of employment; and 

c. Annually. 

1 1 . A facil ity that intends to retain  residents who require end-of-life care shall comply with the 
additional requirements in this section and request and receive approval on a printed new 
l icense from the department, prior to providing end-of-life care to residents. 

1 2 . The facility approved and l icensed to retain residents in need of end-of-life care remains 
responsible for the appropriate delivery of end-of-life care in coordination with the licensed 
and Medicare-certified hospice agency. If the facility is unable, or becomes unable, to meet 
the needs of the resident requiring end-of-life care, the resident rescinds election of the 
hospice benefit, or the facil ity is unable to comply with these requirements, the facility shall 
promptly make arrangements to d ischarge or transfer the resident to a safe and appropriate 
placement consistent with the level of care required to meet the resident's needs. 

History: Effective July 1 ,  201 5.  
General  Authority: NDCC 23-09.3-09, 28-32-02 

1 5  
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NOTIFICATION TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH REGARDING THE J;J I f J· 7 
PROVISION OF END OF LIFE SERVICES TO A BASIC CARE RESIDENT 
NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DIVISION OF H EALTH FACIL IT IES 
SFN 60907 (04- 1 5) 

Optional Service of End of Life Care for Basic Care residents who have elected Hospice services. Notification 
to the Department of Health must occur within 48 hours of the resident electing hospice services or upon 
discharge, transfer, death , or when the resident is no longer capable of self-preservation. 

Provider's Name Telephone Number 

Address I City State I ZIP Code 

Total number of residents receiving end of life services (including this resident) 

INITIAL NOTIFICATION 
Provide the following dates: 
Date 

When the physician identified the terminal i l lness. 
Date 

When the resident elected Hospice. 
Date 

When the hospice services were implemented in the basic care facility. 

When the required training and competency evaluation was completed. 
When the contract was signed with the Medicare Certified Hospice agency chosen by the 
resident or famil members. 

Contact Person for the Medicare Certified Hospice Agency Telephone Number 

Address City State 

THE RESIDENT IS NO LONGER CAPABLE OF SELF-PRESERVATION 
On what date did the resident become no longer capable of self-preservation? 

Does the end of life plan of care provide for adequate 24 hour bedside care by facility 
staff? 
E-Scores completed weekly and with a significant change in the resident's evacuation 
capability and facility staff adjusted accordinolv. 
FINAL NOTIFICATION 
Provide the date for the resident's: 
Discharge Date I Transfer Date 

Administrator's Signature 

Submit completed form to: North Dakota Department of Health 
Division of Health Facilities 
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 301 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0200 
Fax: 701.328. 1890 

Date of Death 

Date 

ZIP Code 

D Yes D No 

D Yes D No 



TO: 

N O RTH DAKOTA 
D E PARTM ENT of H EALTH 

HEALTH RESOURCES SECTION 
600 East Boulevard Avenue, Dept. 301 

Bismarck, ND 58505-0200 
Fax: 701 .328.1 890 
www.ndhealth.gov 

M E M O R A N D U M  

Shelly Peterson, NOL TCA President 

FROM: Lucil le Rostad < �t. 6 .... llu 1v'�-t:JL 
December 1 1 , 20 1 5  DATE: 
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TOPIC: Hospice Services in a Basic Care Facility NOT Licensed to provide End of Life Care Services 

This memorandum is in response to your request for clarification related to how long a resident e lecting Hospice 
Services can stay in a Basic Care facility that is not l icensed to provide End of Li fe Care Services. 

A resident in a Basic Care facility can elect Hospice Services and stay in a Basic Care facility that is not licensed 
for End of Life Care Services as long as the resident meets the basic care level of care. 

What does this mean? 

NDCC 23-09.3-08.1 Admission of residents to basic care facility - Restrictions. A basic care facility may 
admit and retain only an individual for whom the facil ity provides, directly or through contract, appropriate 
services within the facility to attain or maintain the individual at the individual 's highest practicable level of 
functioning. A basic care facil ity may admit and retain only an individual whose condition and abi lities are 
consistent with the national fire protection association 1 0 1  l ife safety code requirements. 

This statute is further clarified in North Dakota Administrative Code 33-03-24. 1 -0 1 .  Definitions. 2., 5 .. 6., and 
I 6. Based on this information, the admission and retention criteria for a resident in a Basic Care faci lity includes 
that the individual may need assistance with activities of daily living which means that the resident is able to 
help with most of an activity, but cannot do it entirely alone. This includes eating, nutrition, dressing, personal 
hygiene, mobility, toileting, and behavior management. 

The decision of some Basic Care facil ities to provide twenty-four-hour a day nurse staffing should not be 
interpreted to mean that the resident's condition requires twenty-four hour a day nursing care. If the resident 
declines to the level where continuous, twenty-four-hour a day nursing or medical care is needed, the individual 
can no longer assist with their own activities of daily l iving, or the resident is no longer capable of se lf 
preservation, with or without assistance, the resident is no longer appropriate to remain in a Basic Care facility. 

In summary, a basic care resident can elect to receive Hospice Services and stay in a Basic Care facil ity that is 
not l icensed to provide End of Life Care Services, unt i l  the resident no longer meets the definition of a basic care 
resident as discussed above, and the care required exceeds the basic care level . If a Basic Care faci lity becomes 
l icensed to provide End of Life Care Services, the resident who elects Hospice Services would be able to remain 
in the facil ity even when the resident exceeds the basic care level of care and requires skilled nursing care. 

If you have questions, please contact Luci l le Rostad at 70 1 -328-2352 . 

Health Facilities 
701 .328.2352 

Life Safety and Construction 
701 .328.4873 

Food and Lodging 
701 .328 . 1 291  
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MOBRIDGE, S.D. - Harold Labrensz spent much of his 89-year life farming and ranching the rolling 
Dakota plains along the Missouri River. His family figured he would die there, too. 

But late last year, the nursing home in Mobridge, S.D., that cared for Mr. Labrensz announced that it was 
shutting down after a rocky history of corporate buyouts, unpaid bills and financial ruin. It had become one 
of the many nursing homes across the country that have gone out of business in recent years as beds go 
empty, money troubles mount and more Americans seek to age in their own homes. 

For Mr. Labrensz, though, the closure amounted to an eviction order from his hometown. His wife, Ramona, 
said she could not find any nursing home nearby to take him, and she could not help him if he took a fall at 
home. So one morning in late January, as a snowstorm whited out the prairie, Mr. Labrensz was loaded into 
the back of a small bus and sent off on a 220-mile road trip to a nursing home in North Dakota. 

"He didn't want to go," said Mrs. Labrensz, 87, who made the trip with her husband. "When we stopped for 
gas, he said, 'Turn this thing around. '  " 

More than 440 rural nursing homes have closed or merged over the last decade, according to the Cowles 
Research Group, which tracks long-term care, and each closure scattered patients like seeds in the wind. 
Instead of finding new care in their homes and communities, many end up at different nursing homes far 
from their families. 

In remote communities like Mobridge, an old railroad town of 3,500 people, there are few choices for an 
aging population. Home health aides can be scarce and unaffordable to hire around the clock. The few 
senior-citizen apartments have waiting lists. Adult children have long since moved away to bigger cities. 

"How often have you heard somebody say, 'If I go to a nursing home, just shoot me? '"  said Stephen 
Monroe, a researcher and author who tracks aging in America. "In the rural areas, you don't have options. 
There are no alternatives." 

https:/ /www .nytimes.com/20 1 9/03/04/us/rural-nursing-homes-closure.htm I 3 /8/20 1 9  
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Small communities like Mobridge, an old ranching and railroad town of 3,500 people, often offer few local options for elder care, 
and winter weather can make it impossible to visit loved ones placed in distant nursing homes. Kristina Barker for The New York Times 

The relocations can be traumatic for older residents, and the separation creates agonizing complications for 

families. Relatives say they have to cut back visits to one day a week. They spend hours on the road to see 

their spouses and parents. 

"Before, I could just drop by five days a week," said the Rev. Justin Van Orman, a Lutheran pastor who 

moved back to Mobridge to be closer to his 79-year-old father, Robert. "He knew I was there." 

Not long after Mr. Van Orman's father moved from Mobridge to a new nursing home about 50 miles away, 

Mr. Van Orman got a call saying his father had fallen out of bed. Mr. Van Orman had to decide : Should he 

upend his day to check on him, or wait and take the nursing home's word that his father was O.K.? 

Similar scenes are playing out in other heavily rural states. Five nursing homes closed in Nebraska last 

year, with more at risk of closing. Six shut down in Maine - a record, according to the Bangor Daily News. 

Thirty-six rural nursing homes across the country have been forced to close in the last decade because they 

failed to meet health and safety standards. But far more have collapsed for financial reasons, including 

changing health care policies that now encourage people to choose independent and assisted living or stay 

in their own homes with help from caregivers. 

https://www.nytimes.com/20 1 9/03/04/us/rural-nursing-homes-closure .html 3/8/20 1 9  
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Some nursing homes cannot find people to do the low-paying work of caring for frail residents. Others are *" 1 f J ·  JJ 
losing money as their occupancy rates fall and more of their patients' long-term care is covered by 
Medicaid, which in many states does not pay enough to keep the lights on. 

South Dakota chips in less than any other state in the nation to pay for long-term care for residents on 
Medicaid, said Mark B. Deak, executive director of the South Dakota Health Care Association. He added 
that the state's low payment level - a product of South Dakota's fiscal conservatism and distrust of 
government-run health care - has now created a crisis. 

Blowing snow created hazardous driving conditions in February near Mobridge. After the closure of a local nursing home, many 

area residents wishing to visit loved ones in nursing care face drives of up to four hours even in good weather. 

Kristina Barker for The New York Times 

Five South Dakota nursing homes have shut down in the past three years, and dozens more are losing 
money because the majority of their residents rely on Medicaid. At current reimbursement rates, nursing 
homes in the state lose about $58 a day for each resident on Medicaid, Mr. Deak said. It adds up to $66 
million a year in losses statewide. 

"The state has not held up its obligation to seniors," Mr. Deak said. "How many more nursing homes closing 
is it going to take?" 

Gov. Kristi Noem has proposed a 5 percent increase in the state's Medicaid reimbursement rate. Mr. Deak 

https ://www.nytimes.com/20 1 9/03/04/us/rural-nursing-homes-closure.html 3/8/20 1 9  
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The 89-bed Mobridge Care and Rehabilitation Center was rated overall as "below average" by Medicare's 
Nursing Home Compare program, though for patient care, the home received four out of five stars in the 
agency's assessment. The brown brick building was getting old, and had been damaged by a bad summer 
storm in 2018. 

The nursing home had been part of a chain that switched hands and foundered financially, ultimately 
ending up in court-appointed receivership. In November, the receiver told a South Dakota judge that the 
chain's operations were bleeding money, and that it needed to close down the two homes in the chain that 
were deepest in the red. Mobridge was one. 

The South Dakota Department of Health did not object, and the judge agreed to the closure. Word began to 
spread through the home and through town : The residents had about two months to find somewhere else to 
go. 

Black Hills Receiver, which had taken over operation of the nursing home, said in a November statement 
announcing the closure that it was working with residents, their families and employees "to make this 
transition as smooth as possible." The company declined an interview request. 

For six days this winter, Loretta Leonard could not make the 20-mile drive from Mobridge to Selby, S.D., to see her husband, Dick, 

who is 91 and suffers from severe dementia. Kristina Barker for The New York Times 

https://www.nytimes.com/20 1 9/03/04/us/rural-nursing-homes-closure.html 3/8/20 1 9  
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On paper, South Dakota and other rural states still have enough long-term care beds for people who need 
round-the-clock care. The problem is where they are. When a nursing home closes in a small town, the 
available beds are often so far away that elderly spouses cannot make the drive, and the transferred 
residents become cut off from the friends, church groups and relatives they have known all their lives. 

Even the closest town can feel as though it is a world away when a blizzard rakes across the prairie and 
turns the two-lane road out of Mobridge into a billowing scarf of snow. 

For six days this winter, Loretta Leonard could not make the 20-mile drive to see her husband, Dick, who is 
91 and suffers from severe dementia, at his new nursing home. When he was living close by at the Mobridge 
home, she often visited him twice a day, sitting down at the piano to play the old polkas and hymns and 
Depression-era tunes their daughters sang growing up. 

"He always knew me," Ms. Leonard, 88, said. "Sometimes I wonder whether he knows me anymore." 

The part-time bus driver for the Mobridge nursing home began keeping a list as he dropped people at their 
new homes : "Residents Who Left." One resident was moved to Aberdeen, 100 miles east. A husband and 
wife went 73 miles down Highway 12 to Ipswich. Roommates said goodbye. Fast friends landed in different 
homes. One person ended up in Nebraska. 

"Like cattle," said Nadine Alexander, a certified nursing assistant who worked at the Mobridge nursing 
home for 29 years. "They were just hauling them out." 

On the snowy day that Harold Labrensz left Mobridge for his new nursing home in North Dakota, not even 
the bus driver wanted to make the trip. For seven hours, they crept north along icy roads before arriving. 

Mrs. Labrensz chose the facility because it was close to her son's home, and she was able to find a small 
efficiency apartment just across the street from the nursing home. They spent 68 years together working 
their land, fishing and raising a family, and Mrs. Labrensz said she wanted to stay close. 

"We spent our whole life together," she said. 

She was also close by when, three days after arriving in North Dakota, Mr. Labrensz died. The date was 
Jan. 31 - the same day that, 220 miles away, the Mobridge nursing home officially closed its doors. 

Correction: March 4, 2019 

An earlier version of this article, using information from a source, misstated Ramona Labrensz's age. She is 
87, not 76. 

A version of this article appears in print on March 3, 2019, on Page Al of the New York edition with the headline: Rural Nursing Homes Shutter, and Famil ies Splinter 

READ 607 COMMENTS 

https ://www .nytimes.com/20 I 9/03/04/us/rural-nursing-homes-closure .html 3/8/20 1 9  
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Good morning Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee. My name 
is Kari Dick. I am the Executive Director at Touchrnark at Harwood Groves in Fargo . 
Touch.mark at Harwood Groves has a total of 200 Assisted Living, Memory Care, and 
Independent Living homes. Thirty-seven of these homes are licensed as basic care dementia care 
homes. 

I am here today to testify in support of House Bill 1 1 26 related to end-of-life care in Basic Care. 
When the initial "end of life" option was added to the Basic Care licensure process in 20 1 5 , 
Touchrnark at Harwood Groves was one of the first facilities to add the provision. Prior to this, 
our community was able to safely accommodate a number of residents through the end of life. 
Even with the change in rules, our goal was to continue to do this for residents when appropriate 
and safe. We have utilized Hospice services for many years, and often long before a resident is in 
his/her final days of life. 

It is important to note that Basic Care facilities may continue to bring Hospice into their 
buildings without the end of life provision. Many residents on Hospice-particularly in a 
dementia care setting-may be up and walking around while on Hospice. The benefits of 
Hospice are not limited to the last days or weeks of life. Hospice care allows residents greater 
pain relief, typically eliminates stressful ER visits and/or hospital stays, and brings greater 
quality of life to persons with dementia while also reducing the burden often placed on family 
members . Partnering with a local hospice agency also provides additional help and resources to 
facilities providing care. 

It is only when the resident consistently no longer meets the community' s  criteria that facilities 
must follow the Basic Care rules regarding end-of-life care. In many cases, this time period may 
only be a few days or even just a week or two . 

Unfortunately, there is one major part of the rule that creates barriers for facilities. The rule 
requires Basic Care facilities to add additional staff members to meet the evacuation 
requirements related to Life Safety Code. In most cases, this applies to night shift coverage-the 
time period when facilities are at the lowest staffing level . Because there is a significant staffing 
shortage in long-term care, facilities do not typically have extra staff ready to take on night shifts 
on short notice and for an uncertain amount of time. 

This leaves the facility with no other option but to hire staff to meet the requirement. The 
recruitment and hiring process itself often takes at least a couple weeks to complete. The new 
staff member then needs to be trained. By the time this process is complete, an individual who is 
truly at the "end of life" will likely have passed away. 

The challenge associated with meeting this requirement prompted Touchrnark to opt out of 
continued participation in the optional end-of-life Basic Care licensure. Without the ability to 
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utilize private caregiving agencies and/or family members, we could neither realistically add 
staff when a resident reached the point of not meeting criteria nor could we reasonably predict 
when the need would occur. 

Touchrnark still utilizes Hospice services with many residents up until the individual no longer 
meets criteria. Unfortunately, in a number of cases, we have been forced to transfer someone in 
their final days of life to an unfamiliar setting. This is extremely traumatic for a dying person and 
their family. Instead of focusing on their loved one's needs, families are faced with the task of 
managing a move, filling out hours of paperwork, and learning to navigate a new facility. 

This is not because of our inability to safely care for this individual-instead, it' s because the 
current requirement does not consider private caregivers and/or family members when 
calculating the facility' s evacuation score. The fix is easy-simply allow family members, 
private caregivers, and other resident representatives to help meet the evacuation requirement. 

Like Ms. Peterson, I want to emphasize that providers are not asking to admit persons who are 
near the end-of-life. I also want to emphasize that there will still be individuals that will require a 
transfer to skilled care. This change will simply allow Basic Care providers, with the help and 
support of a local Hospice agency, to help provide a compassionate end-of-life experience to 
those who can safely live out their last days in the setting which has become their home. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important bill . 
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My name is Rochelle Schaffer, Registered Nurse and President of the North Dakota Hospice 
Organization. Our organization represents 11 hospice agencies throughout North Dakota. I am 
here to testify and ask for your support of House Bill 1126, relating to basic care facility end-of­
life services. 

I have been a representative and advocate for hospice care in North Dakota for the past 7 years 
in my roles as a Hospice Nursing Director and as the State Hospice Organization's President. 

Hospice is a specialized type of end of life care. It is a team of interdisciplinary members that 
include physicians, nurses, nursing assistants, social workers, chaplains, volunteers, and 
pharmacists all working together. Along with the individual and family, the hospice team 
develops a care plan to manage symptoms and promote comfort and safety. 

Hospice also provides financial coverage for medications and equipment needs. The hospice 
team is available 24 hours per day to provide support and guidance to the individual and family . 
In the months following a hospice death, bereavement services are offered to family and friends. 

Hospice care can be provided in any setting an individual calls "home"- a long term care facility, 
a private home, a group home, or an assisted living facility . Due to current regulation, this is not 
often offered to a patient living in a North Dakota Basic Care Facility . 

Together Hospice and Basic Care Facilities in North Dakota can work together to enable these 
individuals to stay in the place they call home, just as we currently do in private homes and 
assisted living facilities. This can be accomplished if the Basic Care Facility is able to permit the 
use of family and volunteer services, along with Hospice to support the individual through their 
end of life. Hospice is a benefit to a Medicare beneficiary, as well as most health plans. 
Individuals have the right to use the benefit just as family has the right to assist in the care of 
their loved ones, no matter the setting in which they reside. Also consider the potential financial 
burden on the individual, the family and the health systems if this individual is moved to a higher 
level of care setting. 

I ask that you consider approving House Bill 1126 to ensure the Hospice Benefit with family and 
volunteer support is a choice to North Dakota individuals living in Basic Care Facilities. 

Thank you. 

Rochelle Schaffer, RN, MHA 
President, ND Hospice Organization 
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I am Cheryl Rising, FNP and  legislative liaison for the North Dakota Nurse Practitioner 
Association .  I am here to testify in support of HB  1 126 a bill for an Act to amend and reenact 
section 23-09.3-08 . 1  of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to basic care facility end-of-life 
services 

Currently when an individual  resides in basic care, is at end  of life, and  the family req uests to 
have supportive cares, the organization may not keep the resident in the facility and  start 
hospice due  to the regulations. I personally go out to assisted living buildings and  basic care 
areas to provide primary care for many individuals in these types of residence.  I h ave had  
personal experience with wanting to keep a resident in basic care in their own room, 
surrounded by familiar care givers, family, and have had to explain to the family we are unable 
to start hospice here, we must send the loved one to the ED and find a place that will be a ble to 
start hospice . This is agonizing for the care giver and  family to disrupt the relationship that h as 
developed which may have been for years. The most recent experience was a resident that was 
at basic care, end stage dementia, a significant change in status occurred, the family wanted 
hospice and we had to transfer to the ED .  This was a difficult time and an inappropriate use of 
health care dollars and  emergency room charges. 

The most recent situation in the last two months that I was involved with was a patient in a n  
organization that could keep the resident a n d  start hospice if needed . I received a call a s  I as 
finishing work on a Thursday that an individ ual had taken a turn for the worse and could I 
please come and see the resident. I immediately went to the individ ual's residence .  I knew this 
patient was declining over the months. I had spoken with the sister, the only living relative, 
about starting hospice in October and again in December; however, she was so distraught that 
she was unable to decide at that time. The resident continued in a residential home with a care 
giver through an organization in Bismarck. I called hospice and  left a message while I was in 
route to see the patient. My question to hospice was if the sister wanted hospice would hospice 
be able to admit and when .  I arrived at the apartment, the sister arrived with in 5 minutes. Pt 
was actively dying, low oxygen saturation, and struggling to breath . The sister did not want her 
to be moved, asked to keep the patient in her own bed, surrounded with the care givers that 
have cared for her for years. Hospice returned my phone call, and  after discussion stated they 
would be there as soon as they could get the on-call hospice n urse the packet for admission 
and  get there. I had already written orders for Ativan and  Morphine sulfate for comfort . Staff 
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were in route to get the medication .  By the t ime the wonderful hospice nu rse a rrived the first 
dose of Ativan had been given, and the patients breathing improved. I was so grateful to leave 
knowing she was now be ing cared for by her own caring team and hospice. The patient lived for 
48 hours and expi red. The sister was grateful for all the loving care and comfort .  If th is facil ity 
was not able to have hospice the patient would have been sent to the emergency department. 
This was a much different experience for this fami ly member. 

NDNPA u rges a do pass on this bill so individuals and famil ies can choose hospice where they 
reside . 

Cheryl Rising, FN P, FAANP 

North Dakota Nurse Practit ioner Association 
www.ndnpa .org 
Legislation Tracking Team 
Cheryl Ris ing :  cris ingnp@gma il.com 701-527-2583 
Jenna Herman: jmherman@umary.edu 612-5 18-3647 
Tara B randner :  tb randner04@gmail.com 701-471-9745 
Additiona l Legislative Committee 
Tisha Scheuer :  tscheue r28@gma il.com 
Allison Pelt ier :  a llison.pelt ie r@ndsu .edu 
Paula Moch : pau lamochfnp@gmail .com 
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Methodology: Al l  provide rs a re counted as  one  fu l l -t ime equ iva lent ( FTE ) .  P rovide rs that a re d u a l ly 
l i censed i n  more than one d isci p l i ne  are sp l it eq ua l ly among each d isci p l i ne .  Those that i nd icated more 
tha n one  practice state a re d iv ided equa l ly to each state a nd  providers that i nd icated more than  one  
practice location a re d ivided eq ua l ly to  each  site. 

APRNS: As of September 10, 2018, there a re 1,534 adva nced p ractice registe red n u rses (APRNs)  l icensed 
in  No rth Da kota . Of the tota l APRNs, there a re 1071 n u rse p ractit io ners ( N Ps) ,  394 .5  certified registe red 
n u rse a nesthetists (CRNAs), 46.5 a re cl i n i ca l n u rse specia l ists (CNS), 21 ce rtified n u rse m idwives ( CNMs),  
and 2 n u rse c l i n ic ians ( NCs) .  Twe lve APRNS were d u a l ly l i censed, 7 CNS/N Ps, 4 C N M/N Ps and 1 
CRNA/N P . As of November 1 1, 2018, 1, 1 1 1  APRNs  have prescri ptive a utho rity. 
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Since 2016, there has been a 20% increa se 
(246) of APRNs l icensed in North Da kota which 
i nc luded a 29% i ncrease i n  N Ps, 17% increase i n  
CNMs, 4% increase i n  CRNAs, 8% decrease i n  
CNSs, a nd  no cha nge i n  NCs. See ta b le 1 .  

ND Licensed APRNs by Employment State 
Unknown Other States North Dakota 

2016 2018 2016 2018 2016 2018 

CRNA 8 7 91 . 5  90 278 .5 297 .5  
CNS 0 0 5 . 5  5 45 41 . 5  
CNM 0 0 .5  1 4 17 16 .5 
NC 0 0 0 0 2 2 
NP 12  20 .5  166 261 .8  652 . 5  788.7 
APRN 20 28 264 360.8 995 1 146 .2 
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Nurse Practitioners: North Da kota has 1071 l ice nsed N Ps, 788 .7  FTE (73 .6%) i nd icated they a re 
cu rrent ly p ract ic ing i n  North Da kota at least part of the yea r. Of those pract ic ing with i n  North Da kota, 
70.5% a re practic ing in the more u rban cit ies of B isma rck, Ma nda n, Fa rgo, West Fa rgo, G rand  Forks and  
M i not with 27.8% pract ic ing i n  more ru ra l a reas, a nd  1 . 7% a re u n known.  P lease see attached maps  of 
psych iatr ic N Ps and  psych iatr ic N Ps and CNS comb i ned . 

A lthough l icensed in  North Da kota, 261 .8 FTE N Ps i nd icated states other tha n North Da kota as  the i r  
State of em ployment inc lud ing M i n nesota (79 .5 ) ,  South Da kota (32 ), Texas (25 .7) ,  M issou ri (23 ) ,  
Arizona ( 1 1) ,  Wiscons in  ( 10), Wash i ngton (8 ) ,  Monta na (7 ), I owa (6 .5 ), Ca l iforn ia  (6 ) ,  F lo rida (5 .7) ,  
Georgia (5 ) ,  Co lorado (4) ,  Oh io (3 .5 ), Nebraska ( 3 . 2 ), Uta h ( 3 ), Arka nsas (2 ) ,  Hawai i  ( 2 ) , I l l i no i s  (2) ,  
Lou is ia na (2 ) ,  Ma ry land (2 ) ,  New Je rsey (2 ) ,  Nevada  (2 ) ,  Massachusetts ( 1 .5 ) ,  V i rg in ia ( 1 . 2 ), Con necticut 
( 1 ), I nd i ana  
( 1 ), Kentucky ( 1 ), M iss iss ipp i  ( 1 ), North Ca ro l i na ( 1 ) ,  New Mexico ( 1 ), New York ( 1 ), Ok l ahoma ( 1 ), 
Oregon ( 1 ), Pennsylva n ia  ( 1 ), Tennessee ( 1 ), Ma i ne  (0. 5 )  a n d  West Virg in ia  (0 .5 ) .  

Of  the n u rse pract it ioners practic ing in No rth Da kota 80.2% (632 .2/788.7)  i nd icated the i r  specia lty a rea 
was fa m i ly medic i ne .  Other specia lt ies i nc l uded adu l t, geronto logy, neonata l ,  ped iatric, psych iatric, a nd  
women's  hea l th .  See cha rt be low. 

2018 Nurse Practitioners Practicing in 

North Dakota by Specialty 

• Adu lt 

• Fam i ly 

• Ge rontology 

• Neonata l 

• Ped iatr ic 

• Psych iatry 

• Womens Hea lth  
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North Dakota Nurse Practitioners by Specia lty 
2016 2018 

Adu lt Medicine 42.5 54 
Fami ly Medicine 519.5 632 . 2  
Gerontology 19 17 
Neonata l Medicine 18 20 
Pediatric Medicine 11 16 .5  
Psychiatry 20 29 
Women's Health Care 22 .5 20 
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S ince 2016, the n u m ber of n u rse practit io ners 
pract ic ing i n  ped iatrics i nc reased by 50%, 
psych iatry (45%), a du lt medic ine (27 .06%), 
fa m i ly med ic ine ( 21 . 69%), a nd neonata l  
( 1 1 . 1 1%) wh i l e  geronto logy decreased by 
10 .53% a nd  women's  hea lth ca re ( 1 1 . 1 1%) .  See 
Tab le 2. Cu rrent ly, 29 n u rse p ractit io ners 
speci a l ize i n  psych iat ry. Of those, 17 .5 (60.3%) 
practice with i n  the more u rba n cit ies of 

B isma rck, Fa rgo, West Fa rgo, G rand  Fo rks a nd M i not .  P lease see attached map  of the locations of N Ps 
with a specia lty i n  psych iatry. 

Clinical Nurse Special ists : In North Da kota 46.5 CNS a re l i censed of which 41.5 (89 . 2%) i nd icated they 
cu rrent ly practice i n  the State .  Of the 41 . 5  CNS cu rrent ly practic ing i n  No rth Da kota 33 .5  (80.7%) a re 
pract ic ing i n  the more u rban cit ies of Bisma rck, Fa rgo, G rand  Fo rks, a nd  M i not. P lease see attached map .  

A lthough l icensed i n  North Da kota, 5 CNS  i nd icated they practice outs ide o f  t he  State .  These inc luded 
M i nnesota (2 .5 ), A labama ( 1 ), Iowa (0.5 ) ,  Oh io (0 .5 )  a nd South Da kota (0. 5 ) .  Of  the c l i n ica l n u rse 
speci a l ists practicing i n  North Da kota, 60.2% ind icated the i r  specia lty a rea was psych iatry and  26 .5% 
ind icated adu lt medic i ne .  P lease see chart be low. 

Clinical Nurse Specialists Practicing in North 

Dakota by Specialty 

• Adu lt 

• D ia betes Mgmt 

• Genet ics 

• Geronto logy 

• Ped iatr ic  

• Per inata l  

• Psych i atry 
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Nurse Practitioner Association 

Tab le 3 

North Dakota Cl inical Nurse Special ists by SP.ecial� 
2016 2018 

Adu lt 12 . 5  11  
Diabetes Management 1 1 
Genetics 1 1 
Gerontology 2 2 
Ped iatric 0 .5  
Perinata l 2 1 
Psychiatry 26 .5  25  

l-\ � l '.;l lt 
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S ince 2016, the n umber  of CNSs p ract ic ing i n  
No rth Da kota h a s  dec l ined by  7 .8%.  Those 
pract ic ing in adu lt medic ine dec l i ned by 12% 
and  psych iatry by 5 .66%. See Ta b le 3. Of the 
25  p ract ic ing i n  psych iatry, 74% { 18 .5 )  CNSs 
a re p ract ic ing i n  the more u rba n a reas of 
B i sma rck, Fa rgo, G ra nd  Fo rks a nd M i not .  
P l ease see attached maps of psych iatr ic CNSs 
and  psych iatr ic CNSs a nd N Ps com bi ned . 

Certified Nurse Midwives: A tota l of 21  CNMs  a re l icensed i n  North Da kota of which 16 .5 i nd icated they 
a re pract ic ing with in  the State. Two or  12 . 1% of the CN M s  a re pract ic ing i n  ru ra l  a reas of Be lco u rt a nd  
Wi l l i sto n .  The othe r 14.5 ind icated they were p ract ic ing i n  t h ree o f  t he  more u rba n  cit ies i n c l ud i ng 
Fa rgo (7 .5 ), M i not (5) ,  and  G rand  Forks ( 2 ) .  A lthough the tota l n umbe r  of l icensed CNMs  i ncreased i n  
2018 com pa red to  2016, those that i nd i cated they p ractice i n  North Da kota decreased by  0 .5  FTE .  P lease 
see attached map .  

Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists: North Da kota has  394.5 l icensed CRNAs of wh ich 297 .5 
i nd icated they a re practicing i n  North Da kota . Of the CRNAs p ract ic i ng i n  North Da kota, 84 . 1% a re 
pract ic ing i n  the fou r  most u rba n cit ies of B isma rck, Fa rgo, G rand  Forks and  M i not; 14 .2% a re pract ic ing 
i n  rura l  a reas a nd 1 .7% d id  not  ind icate a p ractice city. The tota l  n u m ber  of CRNAs p ract ic ing i n  North 
Da kota increased by 6.8% from 2016 (278 .5 )  to 2018 (297 . 5 ) .  P lease see atta ched map .  

Nurse Cl inicians: As i n  2016, two nu rse c l i n ic ia ns  cont i n ue to practice i n  No rth Da kota i n  2018 .  Both 
n u rse c l i n ic ia ns practice i n  u rba n a reas a nd  speci a l ize in  rehab i l itat ion  and psych iatry . 



20 1 8 North Dakota Nu rse Practit ioners 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H D A K O T A  
Nurse Practi t ioner Associat ion 

- Nurse Practitioners practicing with in  county 

1:r Nurse Practitioners' FTE increased since 20 1 6  * Nurse Practitioners' FTE decreased since 201 6 

1:I No change Nu rse Practit ioners' FTE since 201 6 

Unknown ( 1 3) 

• Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practit ioner. For those that ind icated more than one site, 
the FTE was spl it equally and not based on actual hours worked . 
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20 1 8  North Dakota 
Psych iatric N u rse Practit i oners 

BURKE RENVI LLE BOTTI N EAU CAVALIER 
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DUNN 
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SLOPE 

BOWMAN 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H DA K O T A  

MclNTOSH DICKEY 

- Psychiatric Nurse Practit ioners practicing with in county 

c(;, Psychiatric Nurse Practitioners' FTE increased s ince 201 6 
+ Psychiatric Nurse Practit ioners' FTE decreased since 201 6  

9 No change Psychiatric Nurse Practitioners' FTE since 201 6  

PEMBINA 

SARGENT 

Nu rse Practi t ioner Association • Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one site, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked . 
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20 1 8  North Dakota Certified N u rse M idwives (CN M) ,  

C l i n i ca l Nu rse Specia l ists (CNS) ,  and Nu rse Cl i n i cians (NC)  
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N O R T H D A K O T A  
Nu rse Practi t ioner Association 

MclNTOSH DICKEY SARG ENT 

- CNMs, CNS, and/or NC practicing with in  county CN M U nknown (0.5) 

A CNMs' FTE increased since 201 6 * CNS' FTE increased since 201 6  

J.. CNMs' FTE decreased since 201 6 * CNS' FTE decreased since 20 1 6  
A No change CN M's FTE since 201 6 * No change CNS' FTE since 20 1 6  
� No change NC's FTE since 201 6 

* Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practit ioner. For those that indicated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked. 
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20 1 8  North Dakota 

Psych iatric C l i n ica l  N u rse Specia l i sts 
DIV IDE BURKE 
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N O R T H D A K O T A  
Nurse Practi t ioner Association 

MclNTOSH DICKEY 

Psychiatric CNS practicing with in county 

<> Psychiatric CNS' FTE increased since 201 6  

+ Psychiatric CNS' FTE decreased since 201 6 

<> No change Psychiatric CNS' FTE s ince 201 6 

SARGE NT 

* Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked . 

• 
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20 1 8 North Dakota Psych iatri c 
N u rse Pract it ioners and C l i n i ca l  N u rse Specia l i sts 

DIVIDE BURKE RENVILLE BOTTIN EAU CAVALIER  

RAMSEY 

DUNN 

B ILL I NGS 

Sc 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 

.---..J--�H�
ETT
!!!!!!!!�IN�G�E�R-...J� GRAl\flill--� 

SLOPE 

BOWMAN 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H  D A K O T A  
Nurse Practi t ioner Associat ion 

MclNTOSH DICKEY SARGE NT 
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- Psychiatric NPs and/or CNS practicing with in  county 

c[}, Psychiatric NPs' FTE increased since 20 1 6  O Psych iatric CNS' FTE increased s ince 201 6 
+ Psychiatric NPs' FTE decreased since 20 1 6  + Psych iatric CNS' FTE decreased since 201 6  
c(]:, No change Psychiatric NPs' FTE s ince 201 6 O No change Psychiatric CNS' FTE since 201 6 

� Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that ind icated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked . 



20 1 8 North Dakota 
Cert ified Reg istered N urse Anesthetists 

DIV IDE 

GOLDEN 
VALLEY 

SLOPE 

BURKE 

DUNN 

B ILL I NGS 

�NDNPA 
N O R T H D A K O T A  
N urse Practi t ioner Assoc ia tion 

BOTTI N EAU CAVALIER  

Mcl NTOSH D IC KEY 
Oa kes ( 2 )  

As h ley ( 1 )  

SARG ENT 

- CRNAs practicing with in county U nknown (5) 

-t? CRNAs' FTE i ncreased since 201 6 * CRNAs' FTE decreased s ince 201 6  
-{;:{ No change CRNA's FTE since 201 6  

* Fu l l  t ime was assumed for each l icensed Nurse practitioner. For those that indicated more than one s ite, 
the FTE was spl it equal ly and not based on actual hours worked . 

1 1 / 1 8  
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Senate H u man  Services Com mittee 

M a rch  1 1 , 20 1 9  

Good morn i ng  Madam Cha i r  Lee a nd  members of the Senate H uman  Serv ices Comm ittee. 

My n ame  is B ru ce Pr itschet a nd  I am the D i recto r of the Divi s i on  of Hea lth Fac i l i t ies with i n  the  

Depa rtment of  Hea l th .  I am  here to  p rovide  testimony i n  oppos i t i on  to House  B i l l  1 1 26 and to offe r 

a n  a mend ment on beha l f  of the Depa rtment. 

We support the p resence of fa m i l y  members a nd  the i r  pa rti c ipat ion in the end -of- l i fe ca re 

fo r bas i c  ca re residents who need that  servi ce. We want resi dents to have the most effective a n d  

best ca re poss i b l e  through  the i r end-of- l i fe experi ence .  For some resi dents, t h i s  m ay  be fo r them 

to rema i n  i n  the bas i c  ca re fa ci l i ty. 

I n  201 5 ,  we worked with th e bas i c  ca re fac i l i t ies to fi nd  a way that  resi d ents i n  n eed of end ­

of- l i fe services cou l d  receive t he  ca re needed i n  a safe envi ronment a nd  rema i n  i n  a b a s i c  ca re 

fac i l i ty. Th i s  wa s a ch ieved th roug h N DAC 33 -03 -24. 1 -23 .  I n  fa ct, to date, seven bas i c  ca re fa c i l i t ies  

have e l ected to pmvide  th i s  servi ce. 

Wh i l e  we support the use of fam i l y  to provide  ca re to resi d ents, we have concerns re l ated to 

how the b i l l  i s  cu rrent ly written .  The u se of fa m i ly to p rovid e  ca re to resi dents s hou l d  not rep l a ce 

the need of the fac i l i ty to be respons i b l e  for the ca re a nd  safety of the res i dents i n  the i r fa c i l i ty. As 

cu rrent ly written ,  th i s  b i l l  does not req u i re a bas i c  ca re fa c i l i ty to p rovi de  ca re d i rect ly or th ro u g h  

contra ct. Rather, a s  written ,  th i s  bi l l  a l l ows the fa c i l i ty t o  req u i re t h e  res i dent o r  fa m i l y  t o  fi n d  a n d  

contra ct with the i r· own ca reg ivers, fa m i ly, o r  vo l u nteers . Fam i l i es  that  a re i n  mou rn i ng  a t  t h e  end  of 

the res ident's l i fe shou l d  not be req u i red to p rovide  o r  a rra n g e  fo r ca re in order  fo r the res i den t  to 

rema i n  i n  the fa c i l i ty. 

I n add it io · i ,  as written, hosp ice may or may not be i nvo lved . Bas i c  ca re fa ci l i t ies do not have 

experi ence i n  p rovi d i ng  hosp ice ca re. We be l i eve i t  i s  necessa ry fo r a hosp ice to be i nvo l ved to 

\._, / p rovi de  the coord i n at ion and  tra i n i n g  of the end -of- l i fe ca re for a res i dent. 

1 
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� 'S"  ff ).. As a reg u l atory agency, our  goa l  i s  to ensu re a l l  res i dents receive q u a l i ty ca re i n  a safe 

'� setti n g .  I t  i s  i m porta nt that  the bas i c  ca re fa c i l i ty rema i n s  respo ns i b l e  fo r the ca re the i r res i d ents 

receive. We be l i eve the fo l l owi ng a m end ments wi l l  a cco m p l i s h  that  g o a l  wh i l e  sti l l  p rovi d i n g  a way 

that the res id ent ca n rema i n  at  the i r bas ic ca re fac i l i ty. I wou l d  be g l a d  to a d d ress q u estio n s  the 

com m ittee may have. 

\. 
\.,_.-· 

P RO POS ED AM E N D M ENTS TO E N G ROSSED H O U S E  B I LL NO .  1 1 2 6 

Page  1 ,  l i n e  1 5 , rep l a ce "N otwithsta n d i ng contrary provi s ions  i n  su bsection  1 .  a "  with "8" 

P age  1 ,  l i n e  1 5, remove "a n "  

P age  1 ,  l i n e  1 6, rep l a ce " i nd ivi d u a l "  with " res ident" 

P age  1 ,  l i n e  1 6, rep l a ce "fa ci l i ty wraps a round  the i n d iv id u a l ' s "  with " res i dent  e l ects to receive e n d ­
of- l i fe ca re from a l i censed a n d  Med i ca re cert if i ed h ospi ce agen cy, a n d  the  fa c i l i ty meets t h e  
needs o f  t h e  resi dent  d i rectly, th rough servi ces provided by t h e  hospi ce agency, o r  contra cts 
with ca regivers to provide wrap a rou nd  ca re a n d  servi ces .  

P age  1 ,  remove l i nes  1 7  th rough  1 9  

Ren u m ber  accord i n g ly .  

2 
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PROPOSE D  AM EN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO .  1 1 26 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 5 , rep lace "Notwithstand ing contrary provis ions in  subsection 1 ,  a" with "A" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 5 , remove "an" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 6 , rep lace " ind ividual "  with " res ident" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 6 , rep lace "faci l ity wraps around the ind ividua l 's" with " resident rece ives 
end-of- l ife ca re from a l icensed and Med icare certified hospice agency, and the 
faci l ity meets the needs of the res ident d i rectly th rough services provided by the 
hospice agency or contracts, between the faci l ity or  res ident, and caregivers to 
provide wrap around care and services . The basic care faci l ity remains 
respons ib le for the ca re and services of the basic ca re resident . " 

Page 1 ,  remove l i nes 1 7  through 1 9  

Renumber  accord ing ly 



Proposed Amendment to 1 1 26 

i.j� 1 12 Ct 
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Page 1 ,  line 1 9 , after the period insert "A basic care facility continues to be responsible for the 
care and services of every resident. " 
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